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Independent auditor’s report

To the Shareholder and Board of Directors of Agrarian Credit Corporation Joint Stock Company

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Agrarian Credit Corporation Joint Stock Company
(hereinafter, the “Company"), which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31
December 2019, and the statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity
and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Company as at 31 December 2019 and its financial performance and its
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRSs).

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for
the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company
in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (Including International Independence Standards) (IESBA Code), and
we have fulfilled our other sthical responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited
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Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our prafessional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter

below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is

provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
financial statements section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly,

our audit included the performance of procedures designed to r

espond to our assessment of the

risks of material misstatement of the financial statements. The results of our audit procedures,
including the procedures performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for our
audit opinion on the accompanying financial statements.

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Allowance for expected credit losses on loans to customers

Estimation of the allowance for expected
credit losses on loans to customers in
accordance with IFRS 9 Financial Instruments
is a key area of judgement for the

Company’s management. |dentification of
indicators of significant increase in credit risk
since the initial recognition of the asset,
determination of the probability of default and
the loss given default are the processes
involving a significant level of subjective
judgement, use of assumptions and analysis of
various historical, current and forward-looking
information.

The use of different models and assumptions
can

significantly affect the allowance for expected
credit losses on loans to customers.

Due to the significant amount of loans to
customers, which in aggregate amount to 78%
of the total assets of the Company as at 31
December 2019, and because of an extensive
use of professional judgment, estimation of
allowance for expected credit losses was a key
audit matter.

Information on expected cradit losses on loans
to customers is presented in Note 7 Loans to
customers and Note 23 Risk management to
the financial statements.

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited

Our audit procedures included analysis of the
methodology for estimating the allowance for
expected credit losses on loans to customers,
as well as the analysis and testing of controls
over the processes of identifying indicators of
significant increase in credit risk since the
initial recognition of the asset, including
overdue dates and availability of debt
restructuring due to credit deterioration of the
asset.

As part of the audit procedures, we performed,
on a selective basis, an analysis of
assumptions and testing of inputs used by the
Company in estimating the allowance for
expected credit losses on loans to customers,
including statistical data on debt servicing,
recovery of losses in the event of default as a
result of sale of collateral and repayment of
debt in cash, as well as impact of forward-
looking macroeconomic factors.

We have restated allowance for expected
credit losses.

We analysed the information on the allowance
for expected credit losses on loans to
customers disclosed in the notes to the
financial statements.
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Other information included in the Company’s 2019 Annual Report

Other information consists of the information included in the Company’s 2019 Annual Report,
other than the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. Management is responsible
for the other information. The Company's 2019 Annual Report is expected to be made available to
us after the date of this auditor's report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we will not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the
other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited
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Responsibilities of management Board of Directors for the financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements
in accordance with IFRSs, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary
to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do 50.

The Board of Directors is responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’'s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a gquarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

A member firm of Ernst & Young Globial Limited
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As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

>

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we
are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue
as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the Board of Directors regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Board of Directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safequards.

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited
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From the matters communicated with the Board of Directors, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse conseqguences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The partner in charge of the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Paul Cohn.

Paul Cohn
Audit Partner

N A

. Gulmira Turmagarﬁb’e@o’va
uditor s General Director
Ernst & Young LLP

Auditor Qualification Certificate No. M®- State Audit License for audit activities on the
0000286 dated 25 September 2015 territory of the Republic of Kazakhstan: series
M®HK-2 No. 0000003 issued by the Ministry of
Finance of the Republic of Kazakhstan on
15 July 2005

050060, Republic of Kazakhstan, Almaty,
77 Al-Farabi Ave., Esentai Tower

10 April 2020

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited



Agrartan Credit Corporanon Jomt Stock Company

2019 financial statements

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

as at 31 December 2019

(in thousands of tenge)

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Amounts due from banks

LLoans to customers

Assers held for sale

Finance lease receivables
Invesument securnnes

In\_(_’:‘bmlf_‘llr pIOpC[t}'

Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets

Curtent corporate INCOMe Tax assers
Deferred corporate income tax assets
Other assets

Total assets

Liabilities

Amounts due to the Shareholder

Due ro credit insnrations

Debt securines 1ssued

Due to state and state-financed oranisanions
Current provisions

Current corporate income rax habilities
Deferred corporate income rax habiliries
Orher halulines

Total hiabilities

Equity

Share C:l]’llT‘;\]

Addirional pad in capiral

Reserve funds

Provision for nononal distribution
Retamed earnings / (accumulated loss)
Total equity

Total liabilities and equity

Book value per ordinary share (tenge)

Signed and authorised for issue on behalf of the Manage?(ﬁuard:

10 Apil 2020

31 December 31 December

Notes 2019 2018
0 48.578.130 7(.889.857
7 45.063.483 32.815.837
8 361.783.687 265.103.066
8 1.880.310 864.739
10 2.287.406 =
9 604.896 -
11 447.821 345.724
12 367.500 362.767
13 254.653 297 828
20 - 359.009
2 - 982.220)
14 1.663.281 274.320
462.931.167 372.295.367

15 155.214.588 127.888.348
16 9.876.118 9.546.645
17 86.340.978 56.898.981
18 36.435.103 22.634.685
373.023 344.507

20 135.976 ==
20 1.486.049 =
19 4.231.587 3.688.523
294.093.422 221.001.689

21 167.809.534 158.630.371
21 58.624.854 34.670.854
21 5.339.751 5.339.751
21 (67.467.287) (46.219.772)

4.530.893 (1.127.526)

168.837.745 151.293.678

462.931.167 372.295.367

21 1.002,72 951,87

The accampenying notes on pages 6 to 3+ are an integral part of these financial statements,

Chatrman of the Management Board

Chief Accountant



Agranan Crecit Corporation Joint Stock Company

2019 fmancial statements

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
for the year ended 31 December 2019

(en thonsands of tenge)

Notes 2019 2018
Interest income calculated using effective interest rate
Cash and cash equivalents 4.323.045 3.749.649
Amounts due from banks 5.529.233 4.046.964
Loans to customers 41.966.531 24.660.881
Investment securities o 3.099.505 4.533.535
54.918.314 36.991.029
Other interest income
Finance lease receivables 42.844 =
54.961.158 36.991.029
Interest expenses
Amounts due to the Shareholder (11.632.992) (4.396.260)
Due to credit nstirutions (902.375) (122.454)
Debt securities issued (5.317.449) (3.811.686)
Due ro stare and srare-financed orzanisations (2.546.677) (1.785.800)
Amounts due ro the Governmenr of the Republic of Kazakhstan (5.467) (5.417)
Other liabihnes - (114.313) (119.301)
o (20.519.273) (12.239.918)
Net interest income 34.441.885 24.751.111
Credir loss expense 22 (7.966.793) (5.076.898)
Net interest income less loan loss expense 26.475.092 19.674.213
Net gain /(loss) from foreign currencies 49 (629)
Other income 218.832 201.759
Personnel expenses 23 (3.328.928) (2.810.513)
Other operating expenses 23 (2.100.061) (2.038.261)
Net losses as a tesulr of modificanon of financial assets measured at
amortised cost 8 (303.107) (1.287.749)
Net losses on derecognition of financial liabilines measured at
amortised cost (663.174) (388.195)
Othet expense (198.385) (2.992)
Non-interest expense o (6.374.774) (6.326.582)
Profit before corporate income tax expense 20.100.318 13.347.631
Corporate Income tax expenses 20 (4.066.282) (2.972.014)
Profit for the year 16.034.036 10.375.617
Basic and diluted earnings per common share (in tenge) _ 21 100,63 65,41
Signed and auth i half of the Managément Board:

10 April 2020

The accompanying notes on pages 6 to 5+ are an tnteeral part of these financial statements.

Chairman of the Management Board

Chief Accountanr

12



Agranian Credir Corporarion Joint Stock Company 2019 financial starements
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
for the year ended 31 December 2019

(in thousands of tenge)

Nores 2019 2018
Profit for the year 16.034.036 10.375.617
Other comprehensive income for the year - -
Total comprehensive income for the year 16.034.036 10.375.617

Signed and authorised for issue on behalf of the Management Board:

Baglan Kulib Chairman of the Management Board

Zarrullaveva [rina Nikolayevna Chief Accounrant

10 April 2020

The accompanyeng notes on pager 6 to 54 are an integral part of these financial statements.



Agrarian Credir Corporation Joint Stock Company

2019 Anancial statements

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
for the year ended 31 December 2019

(en thousands of tenge)

Notes

As at 1 Januvary 2018
Impaer of adopung IFRS 9

Restated opening balance
under IFRS 9

Total comprehensive income

for the reporting period
Income from mital

TECH n;,-miti( i of loans from

the Sharcholder at fair value

net of max 21
Provision for notiom

distnbution fur the year ner

of tax 21
Increase m reserve funds 21
>

Dividends declared

22.131.900

10.375.617

= (22.16K.371) =
2793.124 = (2.793.129)
(4. 180.6H5)

Accumulated
Allowance for loss /
Additional netional retained
Share capital _ paid-in capital  Reserve fund. elistrzbure eamings Total
15K.030.371 12.538.954 2540627 (24.1151.401) 2894127 152558678
= z - s (T414.461) (7414.461)
158.630.371 12.538.954 2.546.0627 (24.051.401) (45200334 145.144.217

1375617

221531900

{22.168.371)

(4.189.685)

As at 31 December 2018 155.031.371 34.0701.854 5.339.751 (46.219.772) {1.127.526) 151.293.678
1 January 2019 154.630.371 I4ATLE54 5.330.751 (46.219.772) (1.127.526) 151.293.674
Toral comprehensive income

for the reporting penod e - = = 16.034.036 16.034.036
Inerease in the share caparal as

part of KazAgrolroducr |50

mergcr 21 9.179.163 9.179.163
Income from mitud

recoprtion of louns from

the sharcholder ar far value

net of tax 21 - 23.954.000 - - - 23.954.000
Provision for notional

distnbution for the vear net

of tix 2 = == - 21.247.515) - (21.247.515)
Dhwdends deckared 21 - - - - (10.375.617) (10.375.617)
As at 31 December 2019 167.809.534 58.624.854 5.339.751 ((7.467.287) 4.530.893 168.837.745

Signed and authorised for issue on behalf of the Management Board:

Baglan Kulibayevi

Zanllaveva Irna

10 April 2020

Chairman of the Management Board

Chief Accountant

The accompanying notes on pages 6 to 54 are an infegral part of these financial statementy.



Agranan Credit Corporation Joint Stock Company 2019 financial starements

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
for the year ended 31 December 2019

(in thousands of fenge)

Notes 2019 2018

Cash flows from operating activities
Interest recerved 32.257.118 26, 13U.645
Interest paid (11.373.040) (H.247.414)
Persommel expenses paid (2.443.471) (1.993.653)
Other operating expenses paid (2.026.829) (1.995.980))
Cash flows from operating activities before changes in operating assets and

liabilities — 16.413.778 13,000,638
Net finrvase)] decreave i aperaling dsss
Amounts due from banks (10.026.355) (22.37T2.8635)
Lans to customers (111.503.497) (115.292.956)
Other assers 405.405 56.5%5
Net imervarre/ (dervave) in npivating labiliiics
Ohher habilines 1.644.965 (547.911)
Net cash used in operating activities hefore corporate income tax (103.065.704) (124.163.474)
Corporate mcome tas pad (2.005.681) (HHY. 444
Net cash used m operating actvities (105.071.385) (125.4152.927)
Cash flows from mvestng activities
Proceeds from redemprion of myestmient secunities 404.712.426 TYR.538.221
Purchpse of nvestment secunmies (404.678.244) (T47.540.056)
Purchase of property, plant and equipmens (42.187) [208.881)
Purchase of mtangble assers (105.763) [95.1135)
Net cash flows (used in)/from investing activities (113.768) 500693346
Cash flows from financing activities
Procecds from Toans from the Goveenment of the RL'puhliE of Kazakhstan 26 GO.000.000 LN LR
Repuvment of loans from the Government of the Republic of Kazakhsran 20 (60.000.000) (LA NLAHNE)
Proceeds from loans from eredit institutions 26 9.800.000 9477052
Repayment of lians friom credit institutions 26 (9.477.051) {1.553.480)
Proceeds from loans from the Shareholdes 20 69.601.108 133.225.8iM)
Repayment of loans from the Sharehaolder 260 (23.348.012) (4.6T74.073)
Debr secunnes 1ssued 26 28.729.231 -
R('Jumprnm of delsr secunties ssued 26 - [LOLAMH L0
Proceeds from loans from state and state- fimanced organssations 26 17.867.780 1H.463.010
Repayment of borrowings from state and Ctate-fimanced orgiisations 26 (365.127) (2.041.701)
Recepr of funds from Kaz AgroProduct 1500 5 437 983 -
Repayment of loans from related partes L (SO0
Payment of dividends 21 - (10.375.617) (4 18.085)
Net cash from financing activities B2.870.295 138.200.323
Effect of changes in expecred eredit losses on eash and eash equiralents 3131 (6.86T)
Net change in cash and cash equivalents (22.311.727) 63842875
Cash ind cash equivalents, begmning o 70.889.857 TO46,082
Cash and cash equivalents, ending g 48.578.130 Ti)LHHY.H5T
Non-cash transactions
Transter of an assert on CUT withm KazAeroProduct J8C merger 5 75.398 -

gement Board:

Chairman of the Management Board

Chief Accountant

The avcongpanying notes on pages 6 lo 54 are an integral part of these financeal siatements,



Agranan Credit Corporation Joint Stock Company Notes to 2019 financial statements

(in thansandy of tenge)

1.  Principal activities

Agrattan Credit Corporation JSC (the “Company™) was esrablished by the Dectee of the Government of the Republic of
Kazakhstan No. 137 dated 25 Jannary 2001 “On 1ssues of credit financing of agriculrural sector” in the form of a joint stock
company in accordance with the legislation of the Republic of Kazakhstan. The Company carties out activities on the basis
of a license to conduct operations provided for by bankmng legislation of the Republic of Kazakhstan No. 5224 as of 5
November 2013, issued by the Commirtee on Regulation and Supervision of the Financial Market and Financial Organizations

under the National Bank of the Republic of Kazakhstan The Company acuviues are regulated by the Nanonal Bank of the
Republic of Kazakhstan (the "NERK").

The core activities of the Company include implementation of government programs to support the agricultural sector,
attraction of domestic and foreign investment for the realization of their own projects in the agncultural secrot, development
and 1mplementation of projects i the agricultural sector, realizanon of collateral and agncultural products received in
repayment of 1ssued funds, banking botrowing operations on the basis of a license, leasing activities, and other activities not
prohibired by rhe legislative acts thar meet the goals and objectives of the Company stipulated by the Charter.

The financing activities of the Company provide for specific requirements and limitations on the use of funds. Interest rate
for granted loans to customers 1s below marker owing to implementation of the programs of agriculture developmenr in the
Republic of Kazakhstan

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, KazAgro National Managing Holding Joint Stock Company (“KazAgro” or the
“Sharcholder”) owns 100% shares of the Company. The ultimate controlling party of the Company is the Government of the
Republic of Kazakhstan.

On 5 December 2019, the Company carried out a voluntary reorganisation through KazAgroProduct JSC (KAP) merger based
on the dectston of the sole Sharcholder's Management Board No. 47 dated 18 Ocrober 2019, As at 31 December 2019, the
Company has 17 registered branches throughout the Republic of Kazakhstan (as at 31 December 2018: 16 branches).

The address of the Company’s recistered office 15: 11 Imanov Str., Nur-Sultan, Republic of Kazakhstan.

2.  Basis of preparation
These financial statements have huen prepared n accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“TFRS™).

The financal statements are prepared under the historical cost convenrion except as disclosed in Summary of significant
accounting policies.

These financial statements are presented in thousands of Kazakh tenge (“KZT thousand), except per common share amounts
and unless otherwise indicated.

3. Summary of accounting policies

Changes in accounting policies

The Company applied for the first ime certain amendments to standards, which are effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2019. The Company did not apply ahead the standards, clarifications or amendments thar were issued,
bur did not enter into force The nature and the impact of each amendment is described below:

New standards, interpretations and amendments thereof

IFRS 16 Leases

IFRS 16 supersedes IAS 17 Leases, IFRIC 4 Dete rmining whether an Arrangement Contains a Lease, SIC 15 Operting Leases
= Incentives and SIC-27 Evaluatng the Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a Lease. The standard sets
out the prnciples for the recogninon, measurement, presentarion and disclosure of leases and requires lessees to account for
most leases under a single on-balance sheet model.

0



Agtrarian Credit Corporation Joini Stock Company Notes to 2019 Anancial statements

(1 thowsands of tenge)

3. Summary of accounting policies (continued)

New and amended standards and interpretations (continued)

IFRS 16 Leases (continned)

Lessor accounting under TFRS 10 is substannally unchanged from IAS 17. Lessors will continue to classify leases as either
operating or finance leases using similar prnciples as in IAS 17. Therefore, IFRS 16 did not have an impact for leases where
the Company is the lessor.

The Company first applied IFRS 16 on 1 January 2019. The Company elected to use the recognition exemptions for lease
contracts that, at the commencement date, have a lease term of 12 months or less and do not conrain a purchase oprmion (shorr-
term leases), and lease contracts for which the underlying asset is of low value (low-value assets). Since the Company’s lease
agreements are short-term and do not contain a renewal option, this standard did not have a significant impact on the
Company’s financial statements.

IFRIC Interpretation 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatment

The Inrerpreration addresses the accounting for ncome taxes when tax treatments involve uncertainty thar affects the
application of IAS 12 Income Taxes. It does not apply to taxes or levies outside the scope of IAS 12, nor does it specifically
nclude requirements relating fo interest and penalties associated with uncertain tax rreatments. The Interpretation specifically
addresses the following:

. Whether an entity considers uncertain tax treatments separately

. The assumptions an entite makes about the examination of tax treatments by taxation authorities

. How an entity determines raxable profit (tax loss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused rax credirs and tax rates
. How an entiry considers changes in facts and circumstances

The Company determines wherher ro constder each uncertain tax treatment separately or together with one or more other
uncertamn fax treatments and uses the approach thar betrer predicts the resolution of the uncertainty.

Upon adoption of the interpretation, the Company considered whether it has any uncertain tax positions. The Interpretation
did not have an impact on the financal statements of the Company 1n 2019,

Amendments to IFRS 9 Prepayment I ratures with Negative Compensation

Under IFRS 9, a debt mstrument can be measured at amortised cost or ar fair vahe through other comprehensive income,
provided that the contracrual cash flows are “solely payments of pnncipal and interest on the principal amount outstanding’
(the SPPT crirerion) and rhe instrument is held within the approprate business model for that classificarion. The amendments
1o TFRS 9 clarify that a financial 1sset passes the SPP1 crterton regardless of an event or circumstance that causes the early
tfermination of the contract and irrespective of which party pays or receives reasonable compensation for the eatly rermination
of the contract. The amendments had no impact on the financial statements of the Company.



Agrartan Credit Corporation Joinr Stock Company Notes to 2019 fnancial statements

(in thousands of tenge)

3.  Summary of accounting policies (continued)

New and amended standards and interpretations (continued)

Amendments to TAS 19 Plar Arendment, Curtailment or Settlenront

The amendments ro TAS 19 address the accounting when a plan amendment, curtatlment or settlement oceurs durning a
reporting period. The amendmenrs specify that when a plan amendment, curtailment or settlement occurs dunng the annual
teporting period, an entity is required to determine the current service cost for the remainder of the pertod after the plan
amendment, curtailment or settlement, using the actuarial assumptions used to remeasure the ner defined benefit Liabality
(asser) reflecting the benefits offered under the plan and the plan assets after that event. An entity is also required to determine
the ner mterest for the remamder of the penod after the plan amendment, curtalment or settlement using the net defined
benefit habiliry (asser) reflecting the benefits offered under the plan and the plan assets after that event, and the discount rate
used to remeasure that net defined benefir linbdity (asset). The amendments had no impact on the financial statements of the
Company.

Amendpents 1o LAS 28: Long-term nterests in associates and joint ventures

The amendments clanfy that an catity shall apply IFRS 9 to long-term interests in an associate or joint venmre to which the
equity method is not applied but that, in substance, form parr of the ner investment in the associate or joint venture (long-
term interests). This clanfication is relevant because 1t implies that the expected credit loss model i IFRS 9 applies to such
long-term mtegests.

The amendments also clanfied that, in applying IFRS 9, an entiry does not take account of any losses of the associate or joint
venture, or any impairment losses on the net investment, recognised as adjustments to the net investment in the associate or
joint venture that anse from applyving L\S 28 Dnvestrents in Associates and Joint Ventures. These amendments had no impact on
the financial statements as the Company does not have long term nterests in its associate and joint venture.

Standards and interpretations issued but not yet effective

The standards and interpretations that are issued, but not vet effective, up to the date of issuance of the Company’s financial
statements are disclosed below. The Company intends to adopt those standards, if applicable, when they become effective.

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts

In May 2017, the IASB issued IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts (IFRS 17), a comprehensive new accounting standard for
msurance contracts covering recognition and measurement, presentation and disclosure. Once effective, IFRS 17 will replace
IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts (IFRS 4) thar was issued 1n 2005 IFRS 17 applies to all types of mnsurance contracts (Le., life,
non-life, direct insurance and re-msurance), regardless of the rpe of entines that 1ssue them, as well as to certain guarantees
and financial instruments with disctetionary participation features.

A few scope exceptions will apply. The overall objective of IFRS 17 is to provide an accounting model for msurance contracrs
that 1s more useful and consistent for nsurers. In contrast to the requitements in [FRS 4, which are largely based on
grandfathening previous local accoanting policies, IFRS 17 provides a comprehensive model for insurance contracts, covenng
all relevant accounting aspects. The core of IFRS 17 is the general model, supplemented by:

° A specific adapration for insurance contracts with direct participation terms (the vadable fee approach)

. A simplified approach (the premium allocation approach) mainly for short-duration contracts.
Pl L PP !
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(in thousandys of tenge)

3.  Summary of accounting policies (continued)
Standards issued but not yet effective (continued)

IERS 17 Insurance Contracts (continivd)

IFRS 17 is effective for reporting periods starting on or after 1 January 2021, with comparative figures required. Eatly
application 1s permitted, provided the ennty also apphes IFRS 9 and TFRS 15 on or before the date it first applies IFRS 17.
The Company has not early adopred this standard in 2019.

Amendments to IFRS 3: Definition of 2 Businerr

In October 2018, the LASB issued amendments to the definiion of a business m IFRS 3 Business Combinarions to help
entities determine whether an acquired ser of activities and assefs is a business or not. They clanfy the minimum requirements
for a busmess, remove the assessment of whether market participants are capable of replicing any missing elements, add
gudance fo help enniftes assess whether an acquired process 15 subsrantive, narrow the definitions of a business and of outputs,
and introduce an optional fair value concentration test- The amendment 1s effective for acquisitions to occur on or after 1
January 2020; earher applicanion 1s permirred.

Since the amendments apply prospectively to transactions or other events that occur on or after the date of first application,
the Company will not be affected by these amendmenrs on the date of transition.

Amendnments to LAS 1: Presentation of Financial Statements — Classification of Financial Liahilities as Current or Non-Chrrent and LAS 8:
Definztion of Matereal

In October 2018, the IASB 1ssued amendments to TAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements and [AS 8 Accounting Policies,
Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors to align the definition of ‘marerial’ across the standards and to clanify certan
aspecrts of the definittion. The new definition states that, 'Information 1s marterial 1f omitting, misstating or obsenring 1t could
reasonably be expected to mfluence decisions that the primary users of general purpose financial statements make on the basts
of those financial statements, which provide financial information about a specific reporting entity” The amendments are
effective from 1 January 2020, Euly application 1s allowed.

Since the amendments apply prospecnvely to transactions or other events thar occur on or aftet the date of first applicanion,
the Company's financial statements will not be affected by these amendments in 2019.

Amesdments to IFRS 7 Financial instruments: Disclosurer and IFRS 9 Finaneial Instruments: Interest Rate Benchmark Reform

Amendments to IFRS 7 Fiaancial instruments — Diselosures and IFRS 9 Financial Instrarents include a number of exemptions that
apply to all hedging relationships that are directly affected by the base mterest rate reform. A hedging relationship is affected
if the reform gives dse to uncertunties abour the iming and or amount of benchmark-based cash flows of the hedged 1rem
or the hedging instrument. As a resulr of interest rate benchmark reform, there may be uncertainnes abour the nming and or
amount of benchmurk-based cash flows of the hedged item or the hedging instrument during the period before the
replacement of an existing interest rate benchmark with an alternative nearly risk-free interest rate (an RFR). This may lead to
uncertainty whether a forecast transaction ts hughly probable and whether prospectively the hedging relationship is expected
to be highly effective. The amendments are effective from 1 January 2020. Early apphication is allowed.

Since the amendments apply prospectively to transactions or other events that occur on ot after the date of first application,
the Company's financial starements will not be affected by these amendments in 2019,
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3.  Summary of accounting policies (continued)
Standards issued but not yet effective (continued)
IFRS Annual Improvements 2015-2017 Cycle

IFRYS 3 Business Combinations

The amendments clanfy that, when an entity obtains conrrol of a business thar 1s a jomt operation, 1t apphes the requirements
for a business combimanon achieved m stages, mcluding remeasuring previously held interests in the assets and habilities of
the joint operation at fair value. [n doing so, the acquirer remeasures its entire previously held interest in the joint operation.
An entity applies those amendments o business combinations for which the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of
the first annual reporting period beginning on or after 1 January 2019, with early application permitted.

These amendments had no impact on the financial statements of the Company as there is no transaction where joint control
15 obtamed.

IFRS 17 Joint Arransements

An entity that participates in, bur does not have joint control of, a joint operation might obrtain joint control of the joint
operation in which the activity of the joint operation constirutes a business as defined i IFRS 3. The amendments clarify rhat
the previously held interests in that joint operation are not remeasured. An entity applies those amendments to transactions
n which ir obrains joint control on or after the beginning of the first annual reporting period beginning on ot after 1 January
2019, wath early apphcation pernurted.

These amendments had no impact on the financial statements of the Company as there is no fransaction where joint control
15 obtained.

LAS 12 Incomse Taxes

The amendments clanfy that the mcome tax consequences of dividends are linked more directly to past transactions or events
that generated distbutable profits than to distubutions to owners. Therefore, an entity recognises the income fax
consequences of dividends in profir or loss, other comprehensive mcome or equity according to where 11 originally tecognised
those past transactions or events.

An entity applies the amendments for annual reporting periods begmning on or after 1 January 2019, with early applicatnon
permitted. When the entity first applies those amendments, it applies them to the income tax consequences of dividends
recognised on or after the beginning of the earliest comparative period. Since the Company’s current practice 1s in line with
these amendments, they had no 1mpacr on the financial statements of the Company.

LAS 23 Borrowing Costs

The amendments clanify that an ennty treats as part of general borrowings any borrowing originally made to develop a
qualifying asset when substantiall- all of the activities necessary to prepare that asset for its intended use or sale are complete.

The entity applies the amendments to borrowing costs incurred on or after the beginning of the annual reporting period in
which the enury first applies those amendments. An ennty applies those amendments for annual reporting periods beginning
on ot after 1 January 2019, Eardly adoption is permitted. Since the Company’s current policy is in line with these amendments,
the Company does not expect any effect on its financial statements.

10



Agranan Credit Corporation Jomnt Stock Company Notes to 2019 financial statements

(in thousands of tenge)

3.  Summary of accounting policies (continued)

Mergers of subsidiaries from parties under common control
Mergers of subsidiaries from parnes under common control are accounted for using the pooling of interests method.

The assets and habihties of rthe subsidiary transferred under common control are recorded n these financial statements
prospectively ar the carrving amounts of the transferring ennity (the predecessor) at the date of the transfer. Any difference
berween the total book value of ner assets, and the consideranion paid 15 accounted for in these financial statements as an
adjustment to the shareholders’ equity.

Fair value measurement

Fair value 1s the price that would be received to sell an asser or paid to transfer a habihity in an orderly transaction berween
market participants at the measurement dare. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to
sell the asser or transfer the hability takes place either:

. In the prncipal market for the asset or ability
Or
. in the absence of a princtpal macket, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liabiliry.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company. The fair value of an asset or a habiliry is
measured using the assumptions that marker parnicipants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that marker
participants act in their economic best interest. .\ fair value measurement of a non-financial assert takes mto account a market
parficipant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling 1t to another
marker participanr that would use the asser in 1ts highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation rechniques thar are appropriate in the circumstances ind for which sufficient data are available
to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable mputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs. All
assets and liabilines for which fair value 1s measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the fair
value hietarchy, descrbed as follows, based on the lowest level mput that is significant to the fair value measurement as a
whole:

. Level 1 — quoted (unadjusred) marker prices in active markets for identical ussets or abilines;

. Level 2 — valuation techniques for which the lowest level inpurt that 1s significant to the fair value measurement is
directly or indirectly observable;
. Level 3 = valuation rechiiques for which the lowest level inpur that 1s significant to the fair value measurement is

unobservable.

For assets and labihties thar are recognised in the financial statements at fair value on a recurnng basis, the Company
determines whether rransfers have occurred berween levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categonsation (based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

Financial assets and liabilities
Initial recognition 3

Date of recognition

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets and habilities are recognised on the trade date i.e. the date that the
Company commits o purchase the asset or liability. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets
and habilities that require delivery of assets and habihnies within the period generall: established by regulation or convention
mn the matketplace

11
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3.  Summary of accounting policies (continued)
Financial assets and liabilities (continued)

Initial measurement

The classification of financial instruments at inital recognition depends on their contractual terms and the business model for
managing the mstruments. Financial mstruments are mtially measured at their fair value and, except in the case of financial
assets and financial habilites recorded at FA'PL, transaction costs are added to, or subtracred from, this amount.

Measurement categortes of financial asicts and labilities

The Company classifies all of 1« financial assets based on the business model for managing the assets and the asset’s
contractual terms, measured ar either:

. Amornsed cost
. FVOCI
. FY'PL

The Company classifies and measures irs denvanve and trading portfolio at FVPL. The Company may designate financial
mstruments at F'PL, if so domng climinates or significantly reduces measurement or recognttion inconsistencies

Financial liabilittes, other than loan commitments and financial guarantees, are measured at amortsed cost or at FVPL when
they are held for trading, are derrvanve msrruments or the fair value designation is « pplied.
Aptonnts due from banks, loans to cuitomers, investments securitios at amortised cost

The Company only measures amounts due from banks, loans to customers and other financial investments at amortised cost
if both of the following condition: are mer:

. The financial asset 1s held within a business model with the objective to hold financial assets mn order to collect
contractual cash flows;

. The contractual terms of the financial asset give dse on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the puncipal amount outstanding (SPPT).

The derails of these condinions are outlined below

Business model asvessment

The Company determines its business model at the level that best reflects how it manages groups of financial assers ro achieve
its business objective.

The Company’s business model 15 not assessed on an instrument-by-instrument basis, but at a higher level of aggregared
portfolios and 1s based on observable factors such as:

. How the performance of the business model and the financial assets held within thar business model are evalnated and
teported to the ennty’s kev managemenr personnel;

. The nsks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within that business model)
and, mn particular, the way those nisks are managed;

. How managers of the business are compensated (for example, whether the compensation is based on the fair value of
the assers managed or on the contractual cash flows collected);

. The expecred frequency, vilue and nming of sales are also important aspects of the Company’s assessment.
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3.  Summary of accounting policies (continued)
Financial assets and liabilities (continued)
Initial measurement (continued)

Butsinesy model assessment (continned)

The business model assessment 1s based on reasonably expected scenanos without tuking “worst case’ or *stress case’ scenarnios
into account. If cash flows after initial recognition are realised m a way that 1= different from the Company’s ongnal
expectanons, the Company does not change the classification of the remaming financial assets held m that business model,
but incorporates such informanon when assessing newly onginated or newly purchased financial assers going forward.

The SPPI test

As a second step of its classification process the Company assesses the conrracrual terms of financial asser to idennify whether
they meet the SPPT test.

Prncipal’ for the purpose of this test 1s defined as the fair value of the financial asser at initial recognition and mayv change
over the life of the fimancial asset (for example, if there are repayments of principal or amortisation of the premium/ discount).

The most significant elements of mterest within a lending arrangement are typically the consideration for the tme value of
money and credit risk. To make the SPPI assessment, the Company applies judgement and considers relevant factors such as
the currency in which the financia! asser 1s denominated, and the penod for which the inreresr rate 1s ser.

In contrast, contractual terms that introduce a more than de minimis exposure to nsks or volatlity in the contractual cash
flows that are unrelared ro a basic lending arrangement do not give rise to contracrual cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and mterest on the amounr outstanding. In such cases, the financial asser 1s required to be measured at FV'PL.

As a second step of its classification process the Company assesses the conrractual terms of financial asset to identify whether
they meet the SPPI test.

Prancipal’ for the purpose of this test 1s defined as the fair value of the financial asser ar imnal recogninon and may change
over the hife of the financial asset (for example, 1f there are repayments of principal or amornsation of the premium/disconnt).

The most significant elements of mterest within a lending arrangement are typically the consideration for the time value of
money and eredit nsk. To make the SPPI assessment, the Company apphes judgement and considers relevant factors such as
the currency in which the financial asset 15 denominated, and the period for which the mnteresr rate 1s set.

In contrast, contracmal terms thar introduce a more than de minimis exposure to rsks or volatility in the contractual cash
flows that are unrelared to a basic lending arrangement do nor give nise to contractial cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the amount outsranding. In such cases, the financial asser 15 required to be measured at FUVPL.

Ulndramwn loaw commitments

Undrawn loan commirments are commitments under which, over the duration of the commitment, the Company 1s required
to provide a loan with pre-specified terms to the customer. These commirments are 1n the scope of the ECL requirements.

The Company occasionally 1ssues loan commirments at below marker interest rates drawdown. Such commitments are inimally
recognised at fair value and subsequently measured at the higher of the amount of the ECL allowance and the amount initially
recmgmsed less, when appropriate the comulative amount of ncome recognised.
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3.  Summary of accounting policies (continued)

Reclassification of financial assets and liabilities

The Company does nor reclassify its financial assets subsequent to their initial recognition, apart from the exceprional
circumstances in which the Company changes the busmess model for managing financial assers. Financial liabilines are never
reclassified.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand and amounts due from credit msnmrtions thar mamre within ninety davs
of the date of origination and are free from contractual encumbrances.

Borrowings

Issued fmancial msrmuments or their components are classified as labilittes, where the subsrance of the contractual
arrangement resulfs in the Company having an obhigation either ro deliver cash or another financial asset to the holder, ot to
sansfy the obhgation other than by the exchange of a fixed amounr of cash or another financial asser for a fixed number of
own equty nstruments. Such mstruments mclude amounts due to the Sharcholder, due to credit insumnons and debr
securities tssued, due to the state and budget organisations. After imtial recogninon, borrowings are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method. Gains and losses are recognised mn profit or loss when the borrowings are
derecogmised as well as through the amorusanon process.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Finanaal assets and habilines are offset and the ner amount 15 reported in the statement of financial position when there 1s a
legally enforceable nght to set off the recogmsed amounts and there is an mntention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the
asset and settle the labibty simultaneously. The nght of set-otf must not be contingent on a future event and must be legally
enforceable m all of the following circumstances:

. The normal course of business;
. The event of defaulr; and
. The event of insolvency or bankruptey of the entiry and all of the counterparties.

This is not generally the case with master netting agreements, and rhe relared assers and liabilities are presented gross mn the
statement of financial posioon.

Renegotiated loans

Where possible, the Company seeks to restructure loans rather than to take possession of collateral. This may nvolve
extending the pavment arrangemeats and the agreement of new loan conditions.

The Company derecognises a financial asset, such as a loan to a customer, when the terms and conditions have been
renegotiated to the extent that, substantially, it becomes a new loan, with the difference recognised as a derecognition gain or
loss, to the extent that an impairment loss has not already been recorded. The newly recognised loans are classified as Srage 1
for ECL measurement purposes, unless the new loan 1s deemed to be POCL When assessing whether or not ro derecognise
a loan to a customer, amongst others, the Company considers the following factors

. Change 1n currency of the loan;
. Change in counterparty;
L If the modificarion 1s such thar the instrument would no longer meet the SPPI critenon.

If the modification does not result in cash flows thar are substantially different, the modification does not result in
derecognition. Based on the change in cash flows discounrted ar the original EIR, the Company records a modification gain
or loss that 1s presented in other cxpenses in the statement of profir or loss.
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3.  Summary of accounting policies (continued)

Renegotiated loans (continued)

For modifications not resulting in derecogninon, the Company also reassesses whether here has been a significant mncrease in
credit tisk or whether the assets should be classified as credir-impaired.

Derecognition of financial assets and liabilities

Financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) 1s derecognised
from the statement of financial posinon where:

. The nghts to recerve cash flows from the asser have expired,

. The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset, or rerained the nght ro recerve cash flows
from the asset, but has assumed an obligaton o pay them in full without matenal delay ro a third party under a “pass-
through’ arrangement; and,

. The Company etther (a) has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) has neither rransferred
nor retained substanmallv all the risks and rewards of the asser, bur has rransferred conrrol of the asser,

Where the Company has transferred its nghts ro receive cash flows from an asser and has nerther transferred nor rerained
substannally all the rsks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asser, the asset 1s recogmsed to the extent of
the Company’s contnuing involvement in the asset. Continuing involvement thar takes the form of a guarantee over the
transferred asset 1s measured ar the lower of the ornginal carrving amount of the asset and the maximum amount of
consideration thar the Company could be required to repay.

Wete-off

Financial assers are wrirten off erther parnally or in their ennrety only when the Company has stopped pursuing the recovery,
If the amount to be wntten off 15 greater than the accumulated loss allowance, the difference 1s first treated as an addition to
the allowance that 15 then applied against the gross carrying amount. Any subsequent recovernes are credited to credit loss
expense. Write-off 1s related to derecogninion.

Financial liabilities
A financial liabihry is derecognised when the obliganion under the hability 1s dischaiged or cancelled or expires.

Where an existing financial habilire 1s replaced by anorher from the same lender on substantally different terms, or the terms
of an extsting liability are substantally modified, such an exchange or modification is rreated as a derecognition of the orginal
liabiliry and the recognition of a new liability, and the difference in the respective carrving amounts is recognised in profit or
loss.

Taxation
The curtent mcome tax expense i+ calculated in accordance with the regulations of the Republic of Kazakhstan.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are calculated in respect of temporary differences using the liability method. Deferred income
taxes ate provided for all temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrving values
for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred rax assers are recorded nnlv to the exrenr that it 1s probable rhar raxable profir will be available aganst which the
deducnble remporary differences can be utilised. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured ar tax rates thar are expected
to apply to the penod when the asset 1s realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted ar the reporning date.

The Republic of Kazakhstan also has vanous operanng taxes that are assessed on the Company’s activities. These taxes are
included as a component of other operaning expenses.
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3.  Summary of accounting policies (continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are carried at cost, excluding the costs of day-to-dav servicing, less accumulated deprecianon
and any accumulated impairment. Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of equipment when that cost 1s incurred if the
recognition crifera ire mer,

The carrying values of property, plant and equipment are reviewed for imparrment when events or changes in citcumstances
indicate rthar the carrying value mav not be recoverable.

Costs related ro repairs and renewals are charged when incurred and included in other operating expenses, unless they qualify
for capitahzanon.

Depreciation of an asset begins when 1t 1s available for use. Depreciation 1s caleulated on a straight-line basis according to the
following annual rates based on the esumated useful lives:

Depreciation

rares

Buﬂdjllgﬁ 1-3%
Machinerr and equipment 4-20%
Motor vehicles 10-25%%
Other 100-339%,

The asset’s residual values, useful lives and methods are reviewed, and adjusted as appropriate, at each financial vear-end.

Investment property
Investment property is intended ro earn rentals or capital appreciation, and which 15 not used by the Company as fixed assets.

[nvestment propernes are measured minally at cost, including transacrion costs. The carrying amount includes the cost of
replacing parts of an existing investment property at the nme when such cost are incurred if the recognition criteria are met;
and excludes the costs of day 1o day servicing of an investment property. Subsequent to iniral recognition, investment
properties are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation. Investment property 1s depreciated on a straighr-line basis over
the period of nseful life, which 1s 50 yveats.

Investment properties are derecogmised when either they have been disposed of or when no future economic benefir is
expected from its disposal. Any income and losses from disposal of investment properties are recognised within profit or loss
i the year of derecogmuon.

Transfers to and from investment properties are carried out only when there is a change in use. For a transfer from investment
property to owner occupied property, the carrying amount 1s not changed because the Company uses the model of cost
accounting for both categories: mvestment property and owner occupied property.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets comprise compurer software and hicenses.

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on mminal recognition at cost. Following imitial recognition, intangible assets
are carned at cost less any accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impatrment losses. Intangible assets have finite lives
and are amortised over the useful cconomic lives of 1 to 10 vears and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication
that the mtangible asset may be nopaired.
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3.  Summary of accounting policies (continued)

Assets held for sale

The Company classifies non-current assets as held for sale if its current amount will be recovered prncpally through a sale
transaction rather than through continuing use. For this to be the case, the non-current asset must be avatlable for immediate
sale in its present condition subject only to terms that are usual and customary for sales of such assets and its sale must be

highly probable.

The sale qualifies as highly proballe if the Company’s management 1s commutted to a plan to sell the non-current asset. An
active program to locate a buyer and complete the plan must have been mitiated. Hurther, the non-cutrent asset must have
been actively marketed for a sale ar price that is reasonable in relation to its current fair value. In addinon, the sale should be
expected to qualify for recognition as a completed sale within one year from the date of classificanion of the non-current asset
as held for sale.

The Company measures an asset classified as held for sale ar the lower of 1ts current amount and fair value less costs to sell.
The Company recognises an impairment loss for any initial or subsequent wrte-down of the asset to fair value less costs to
sell if events or changes n circumstance indicate that their current amount may be impaired.

Repossessed collateral

Repossessed collateral represents pledged property repossessed from the Company”s borrowers to repay the debt on loans on
a voluntary or compulsory basis. The decision on the recogninon of repossessed property i the Company’s balance sheet by
the Credit Committee and rthen the Management Board of the Company. After all the procedures, properry is recognized in
the Company's balance sheet at its current assessed value. These assets are recorded within assets held for sale in the starement
of financial position.

Share capital

Share capital

Contributions to share capital are recognised at historic cost, less direct ssuance costs.

Dividends

Dividends are recognised as a liability and deducted from equuty at the reporting date only 1f they are declared before or on
the reporting date. Dividends are disclosed when they are proposed before the reporting date or proposed or declared after
the reporting date but before the financial statements are authorised

Provision far notional distribution

When the Company enters into @ loan agreement with borrowers at below market rates on behalf of the Shareholder, the
difference between the nominal vilue and fair value of the loan upon ninal recogn:tion 1s recorded as provision for notional
distribunon as deemed distribution to the Shareholder

Addtional paid in capital

When the Company receives loans or other financial support from the Shareholder and state and state-financed organization
of the Republic of Kazakhstan at below market rates, the difference between received cash consideration and fatr value of
loans ot other financial support at the dare of ininal recogmnon 1s recorded as addinonal paid-in capital.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation us a result of past events, and it is
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to sertle the obligation and a reliable
estimate of the amount of obligation can be made.
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3.  Summary of accounting policies (continued)

Contingent liabilities

Connngent liabihines are not recognised i the statement of financial position but are disclosed unless the possibility of any
outflow in sertlement 1s remore.

Revenue and expense recognition

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue
can be reliably measured. The following specific recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is recognised:

Interest and similar revenue and excpense

The Company calculates interest revenue on debr financial assers measured at amortised cost or at FVOCT by applying the
EIR to the gross carrying amount of financial assets other than credit-impaired assers (before 1 January 2019: by applying EIR
to the amartised cost of financial assets). EIR 15 the rate that exactly discounts esnimated future cash payments or receiprs
through the expecred life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the
financial asset or financial liability. The calculation takes into account all contractual terms of the financial instrument (for
example, prepavment optons) and includes any fees or mcremental costs that are directly atmbutable to the instrument and
are an integral part of the effective interest rate. but not future credit losses. The catrving amount of the financial asset or
financial liability is adjusted if the Company revises its estimates of payments or receiprs. The adjusted carrving amount is
calculated based on the onginal effecnve inferest rare and the change in carrving amount is recorded as interest revenue or
EXI}QIISE.

When a financial asset becomes credit-impaured, the Company calculates terest revenue by applving the effective inferest
rate ro the net amortised cost of the financial asser. If the financial assets cures and 15 no longer credit-impaired, the Company
reverts to calculating iterest revenue on a gross basis.

For purchased or onginated credir-impaired (POCI) financial assets, the Company calculares mterest tevenue by calculanng
the credit-adjusred EIR and applving that rate to the amortised cost of the asset. The credit-adjusted EIR is the inrerest rare
thar, at ongmal recogninon, discounts the estimated furure cash flows (including credit losses) to the amortsed cost of the
POCI assets.

Foreign currency translation

The financial statements are presented in Kazakh tenge, which 1s the Company’s functional and presentation currency.
Transactions in foreign currencies are mitally recorded in the functional currency, converted at the rate of exchange ruling at
the date of the rransaction. Monetary assets and habilines denommated in foreign currencies are retranslated ar the functional
currency rate of exchange ruling it the reporting date. Gains and losses resulting from the translation of foreign currency
transactions are recognised in the mcome statement as net ncome/ (loss) from foreign currencies. Non-menetary items that
are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates as ar the dates of the
il transactions. Non-monetart items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at
the date when the fair value is determined.

Difference between the contractual exchange rate of a transaction i a foreign curreney and the Kazakhstan Stock Exchange
offictal exchange rate on the dare of the transaction are mcluded in gams less losses from foreign exchange difference. Below
are the exchange rates used by the Company in preparation of these financial statements:

2019 2018
KZT/UsD 381,18 3842
KZT/EUR 426,85 43937
KZT/RUR 6,17 5,52
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3.  Summary of accounting policies (continued)

Segment reporting

Business and geographical segments of the Company were not presented separately in these financial statements, since the
Company's management believes that the chief operaring segment for granting loans are agricultural entities in the Republic
of Kazakhsran, for which risks and recoverabiliry level are considered to be the same throughour the country. Making decisions
abour allocanion of the Compant’s resources and performance assessment by the Company's management, which makes
operatonal decisions, are based on IFRS financial statements.

4.  Significant accounting judgements and estimates

Uncertainty of estimates and judgements

In the process of applving the Company’s accounting policies, management has made the following judgements and estiumates,
apart from those mvolving estimates, which have the most sigmificant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial
statements. The most significant use of judgments and estimates are as follows:

Fair palue of financial instruments

Where the fair values of financial assets and financial habilities recorded m the statement of financial position cannot be
derived from acrive markets, thev are determined using a vanery of valuation rechmiques thar include the use of mathematical
models. The input to these models is taken from observable markets where possible, bur where this 1s nort feasible, a degree
of judgement 1s required mn establishing fair values.

Expected credit losses on financial asset

The measurement of mmpatment losses both under IFRS 9 as at 1 January 2019 and IAS 39 as ar 1 January 2019 across all
categories of financial assets requires judgement in particular, the estimation of the amount and nming of future cash flows
and collateral values when determining ECL and the assessment of a significant mcrease in credit risk. These estimates are
drven by a number of factors, changes in which can result in different levels of allowances. The Company’s ECL calculations
are outputs of complex models with a number of underlying assumptions regarding the choice of vartable inputs and their
mterdependencies. Elements of the ECL models that are considered accounting judgements and estimates include:

. The Company’s criteria for assessing if there has been a significant mcrease m credit risk and so allowances for financial
assets should be measured on a LTECL basis and the qualitative assessment,

. The segmenrarion of financial assets when their ECL 1s assessed on a collectuve basis,
. Development of ECL models, including the varions formulae and the choice of inputs;
B Determunation of assoctations between macroeconomic scenanos and economic puts, and the effect on PDs, EADs

and LG Ds;

2 Selecnon of f()zward—l(mkmg macroeconomic scenarios and their probabiliry weightings, to derive the economic npurs
mto the ECL models.

Alisessment of collateral

The management of the Company monitors collateral on a regular basis using expertenced judgements or independent
estimate m order to adjust the cost of collateral considenng the current marker situanon,
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4.  Significant accounting judgements and estimates (continued)
Uncertainty of estimates and judgements (continued)

Taxaton

Kazakhstan currently has a single Tax Code thar regulares main raxanon matters. The existing taxes include value added tax,
corporate income tax, social and other taxes. Implementing regulations are often unclear or nonexistent and msignificant
amount of precedents has been established. Often, differing opinions regarding legal interpretation exist both among and
within government ministries and organisations; thus creating uncerrainties and areas of conflict. Tax declarations, together
with other legal compliance areas (as examples, customs and currency control matters) are subject to review and mvestigation
by a number of authorities, which are enabled by law to impose severe fines, penalties and interest charges. These facts create
tax risks n Kazakhstan substannally more significant than typically found in countries with more developed tax systems.

Management believes that the Company is in compliance with the tax laws of the Republic of Kazakhsran regulating its
opetattons. However, the nsk remains that relevant authonnes could rake differing positions with regard to inrerprenve rax
I1Ssues.

5. Business combination

In accordance with the deaision of the sole Sharcholder’s Management Board No. 47 dated 18 October 2019, the Com pany
carried our a voluntary reorganssation through KAP merger on 5 December 2019. Property, nghts and obhigations of KAP
were transferred to the Company 1s part of voluntary reorganisation from the date of approval of the transfer act with due
account for the requirements of the legislation of the Republic of Kazakhstan.

As a result of the reorganisation, the Company became the legal successor of KAP for all its obligations and property rights
in respect of all creditors and debtors of KAP, including obligations and property rights disputed by the parties (KAP and/or
third parnes).

Prior to the merger, on 5 December 2019, KazAgro owned 100% of KAP’s shares. Since KAP merger Is a combination of
businesses under common control the Company has appled the pooling of interests method without historical restarement.

KAP share purchase pnce and share offering price of the Company are identified with an accuracy of six decimal places,
namely as the ratio of KAP or the Companys’ equity to the number of outstanding shures of KAP or the Company respecrively
(excluding the shares repurchased by KAP or the Company, respectively). The Company placed ordinary shares to the sole
Sharcholder in the amount of 9,474,625 shates at a price of 966.77 tenge for the amount of KZT 9,179,163 thousand in
exchange for ordinary shares of KAT.

The carrying value of the acquired identifiable assets and liabihtes was as follows:

As ar 5 December

2019
Assets
Loans 1ssued 1.999.509
Finance lease recetvables (Note 10 1.943.447
Accounts recetvable (Note /4) 1.338.595
Assets held for sale 1.314.229
Inventornes 808.427
Investment securities measured at imornsed cost 600.000
Loans ro customers (Note 8) 318.153
Corporate income tax prepad 75.398
Orther raxes prepaid 176.015
Investment propernies (Noze /1) 176.523
Property, plant and equipment (Note 12) 19.278
Other 47
Total assets 8.769.621
Liabilities
Short-term accounts payable to suppliers and contractors 8.989
Short-term advances received 19.452
Total current liabilities 28.441
Total liabilities 28.441

5. Business combinations (continued)

Cash and cash equivalents in the amount of KZT 437,983 thousand on the current bank account of FAP at the end of the
business day on 6 December 2019 were rransferred to the Company's current bank account



Agratian Credit Corporation Joint Stock Company Notes ro 2019 financial statements

(tn thonsandy of tenge)

ECL allowance for recetved dennifiable financial assers was as follows:

As at 5 December

2019
Loans to customers (Note 8) (319.967)
Finance lease receivables (Note 11) (1.761.598)
Accounts recetvable (Note 14) (6.942.650)
(9.024.215)
6.  Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprised the following:
31 December 31 December
- 2019 2018
Cash in current bank accounts 48.581.865 70.896.723
Cash on hand - 1 1
48.581.866 70.896.724
Less ECL allowance (3.736) (6.867)
Cash and cash equivalents 48.578.130 70.889 857

All balances of cash equivalents are allocated to Stage 1 for ECL measurement purpose. An analysis of changes in the ECL
allowance for 2019 is as follows:

o 2019 2018
ECL allowance as at 1 January 6.867 1.270
Change in ECL for the penod - (3.131) 5597
ECL allowance at 31 December 3.736 6.867

Concentration of cash and cash cquivalents

Asat 31 December 2019, cash placed on current accounts included funds in the amount of KZT 26,744,778 thousand or 55%
of the toral cash and cash equivilents placed with Citbank Kazakhstan JSC (as ar 31 December 2018: KZT 28,569,603
thousand or 40% of the total amonnt of cash and cash equivalents).

7. Amounts due from banks

Amounts due from banks comprise:

31 December 31 December

2019 2018

Loans ro the second-tier banks 34.102.894 37.142.226
Time deposits for more than 90 duvs = 11.102.767 1.009.342
45.205.661 38.151.568

Less ECL allowance o (142.178) (5.335.731)
Amounts due from banks 45.063.483 32.815 837

As ar 31 December 2019, amounts due from banks include loans in tenge provided by Bank RBK JSC, Nurbank JSC, Tengn
Bank JSC, ATF Bank JSC, SB Sberbank of Russia JSC, Halyk Bank of Kazakhstan J5C, SB VTB Bank (Kazakhstan) JSC and
First Heartland Jysan Bank JSC fot lending to agromdustrial complex faciliies with matunry untl 2028 and mterest rates from
2.8% to 12.5% per annum (as at 31 December 2018: from 2.8% to 13.2%% per annum and marariry unnl 2023).
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7. Amounts due from banks (continued)

The table below shows an analysis of changes in the gross carrying amount and the corresponding ECL allowances during the

vear ended 31 December 2019

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Gross catrying value as at 1 January 2019 29.938.561 - 8.213.007 38.151.568
New assets orginated or purchased 57.473.100 - - 57.473.100
Assers repad (49.737.484) - (588.853) (50.326.337)
Transfers to Stage 1 7.624.154 = (7.624.154) B
Transfers to Stage 2 - - - -
Transfers to Stage 3 = - - -
Change m mnterest accrued (92.670) = - (92.670)
As at 31 December 2019 45.205.661 - - 45.205.661
Stage | Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Allowance for ECL as at 1 Januury 2019 251.551 - 5.084.180 5.335.731
New assets originated or purchased 253.138 - - 253.138
Assets repaid (232.2006) - (364.523) (596.729)
Transfers to Srage 1 4.876.530 = (4.876.530) -
Transfers ro Srage 2 - - - -
Transfers to Srage 3 = = - -
Changes in year end ECL of exposures rransferred
between stages and changes to inputs (5.006.835) - - (5.006.835)
Unwinding of discount - ~ 156.873 156.873
As at 31 December 2019 142.178 - = 142.178

The changes in the provision for impairment of amounts due from credit institutions for the vear ended 31 December 2018

is as follows:

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Gross carrying value as at 1 January 2018 10.914.277 16.963.782 - 27.878.059
New assets orgmnated or purchased 25.852.305 - - 25.852.305
Assets repad (4.793.012) (879.850) (9.611.725) (15.284.573)
Transfers to Stage 1 7.501.639 (7.501.659) = =
Transfers to Stage 2 (9.621.056) 9.621.056 = =
Transfers to Stage 3 - (17.832.955) 17.832.955 -
Change in interest accrued 84408 (370.408) (8.223) (294.223)
As at 31 December 2018 29,938.561 - 8.213.007 38.151.568
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Allowance for ECL as at 1 January 2018 144332 11.392.544 - 11.536.876
New assets onginated or purchased 106.670 - - 106.670
Assers repaid - (24.506) (6.611.236) (6.635.802)
Transfers to Stage 1 4.840.719 (4.840.719) - =
Transfers to Stage 2 (201.574) 201.574 - =
Transfers to Stage 3 - (7.210.980) 7.210.980 =
Chinges in year end ECL of exposures transferred
between srages and changes to mputs (4.638.590) 482.147 +.243.303 86.854
Unwinding of discount - - 241.133 241.133
As at 31 December 2018 251.551 - 5.084.180 5.335.731

In 2019, the loss of KZT 3,626,717 thousand (2018: KZT 3,459,350 thousand) resulting from mirial recognition of fair values
of loans granred to second-tier banks in 2019 at below marker rate, which were financed by the Shareholder, wus recognized
within equity as crease in the provision for notional distriburion (Note 21).
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8. Loans to customers

Loans to customers comprise loans to borrowers operating in the agricultural sector and include the following items:

31 December 31 December

2019 2018

Loans to legal entities 365.530.528 264496999
Loans ro individuals 51.628.720 40.342.502
417.159.248 3(14.839.501
Less ECL allowance (55.375.561) (39.736.435)
Loans to customers 361.783.687 265.103.066

Allowance for impairment of loans to customers

An analysis of changes n the gross catrving value

December 2019 is as follows:

and cotresponding ECL on loan: to legal ennnies dunng the vear ended 31

Loans to
legal entities Stage 1 Stage 2 Srage 3 rocr Toral
Gross carrying value as at 1 January

2019 149.850.968 475311 112369675 1.801.045 264496999
KAP merger (Nore 5) - - 544.789 - 544.789
New assets originated or purchased 172.298.456 - 46.501.761 1.036.767 219.836.984
Assets repaid (83.835.425)  (L543.276)  (40.671.500) (338.445)  (126.388.646)
Transters ro Stage 1 47.555.638 (15.008.238) (32.547.400) - -
Transfers to Srage 2 (31.837.399) 36.485.778 (4.648.379) - -
Transfers to Stage 3 (69.103.092) (12.072.827) 81.175.919 - -
Changes ro contractual cash flows due ro

modifications nor resulting in

derecognition - - (302.812) - (302.812)
Change in inrerest accrued 2.940.901 84.355 5.875.608 280.575 9.181.439
Amounts wrirten off = - (1.835.225) - (1.838.225)
As at 31 December 2019 187.870.047 8.421.103 166.459.436 2.779.942 365.530.528
Loans to
legal entities Srage 1 Srage 2 Stage 3 rocr Total
Allowance for ECL as at 1 Januar

2019 2.156.348 - 36.071.917 14.755 38.245 020
KAP merger (Note 3) - == 272.406 - 272.406
New assets origmated or purchased 2.908.740 - 5.431.093 - 8.339.833
Assers repaid (1.327.276) (68) (4.766.827) - (6.094.171)
Transters ro Stge 1 10.287.782 (544.548) (9.743.234) - -
Transfers ro Stage 2 (133.445) 1.437.702 (1.304.257) - -
Transfers to Stage 3 (L101.098) (512.560) 1.613 658 - -
Changes i vear end ECL of exposures

transferred berween stages and changes

to nputs (9.829.071) (343.810) 17.919.378 731.390 8.477.887
Changes ro contracral cash flows due ro

modifications not resulting in

derecognition - - (16.097) - (16.097)
Unwinding of discounr - - 4.803 402 - 4.803.402
Amounts written off - - (1.838.225) - (1.838.225)
As at 31 December 2019 2.961.980 36.716 48.443 214 746.145 52.188.055

[
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8. Loans to customers (continued)

Provision for impairment of loans to customers (continued)

An analysts of changes in the gross carrying value and cortresponding ECL on loans to individuals dunng the year ended 31
December 2019 15 as follows:

Loans to

individuals Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 rocr Toral
Gross carrying value as at 1 January

2019 31.205.435 603265 8.535.802 - 40.342.502

KAP merger (Note 5) 30.292 - 635.039 - 93.331
New assers originated or purchased 22.067.179 - - 789.701 22.856.880
Assets repaid (10.487.318) (269.750) (2.860.343) - (13.623.411)
Transfers to Srage 1 7.268.388 (2.228.729) (5.039.664) - -
Transters ro Stage 2 (7.566.336) 7.758.726 (192.390) - -
Transfers to Stage 3 (4.062.751) (4.968.036) 9.030.787 - —

Changes to contractual cash flows dice ra
modificanons nor resulting in

derecognition - - (295) = (295)
Change in infterest accrued 1.265.503 56.558 617.188 20.464 1.959.713
Amounts written off - - - - -
As at 31 December 2019 39.720.392 952.039 10.146.124 810.165 51.628.720
Loans to
individuals Stage I Stage 2 Stage 3 POCI Total
Allowance for ECL as at 1 January

2019 186179 - 1.307 236 - 1.493.415
KAT merger (Nore 53) 917 - 46.644 - 47.561
New assets orginated or purchased 427.606 - - - 427.606
Assets repaid (9.116) (40) (341.821) - (350.977)
Transfers to Srage 1 338.158 (15.016) (323.142) - -
Transfers ro Stage 2 (50.243) 126.831 (76.588) - -
Transfers ro Stage 3 (63.409) (84.164) 147.573 - -

Changes i vear end ECL of exposures

transterred between stages and changes

tO puts (365.447) (4.374) 1.536.772 252.767 1.419.718
Changes to contractual cash flows due to

modificanions not resulting 1n

derecogrtion - - (1.010) - (1.010)
Unwinding of discounr - - 151.193 - 151.193
Amounts written off - - - - -
As at 31 December 2019 464.645 23.237 2.446 857 252.767 3.187.506
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8. Loans to customers (continued)

Provision for impairment of loans to customers (continued)

A reconctliation of the provision for impairment of loans to customers for the vear ended 31 December 2018 15 as follows:

Loans to
legal entities Stage 1 Srage 2 Srage 3 rocr Total
Gross carrying value as at 1 January

2018 85.976.920 6.:809.384 55.982.583 = 148.768.887
New assers orginated or purchased 181.920.449 - - 1.700.000 185.620.449
Assets repad (36.891.216) (28.751.152) (1.9301.847) - (67.573.215)
Transfers to Stage 1 HE.184 736 (72.825.088) (15.359.648) - -
Transfers ro Srage 2 (114.650.399) 190.075.363 (75425.164) - -
Transfers ro Srage 3 (56.002.934) . (94.816.075) 150.819.009 - =

Changes to contractual cash flows due ro
modifications nor resulting in

derecognition - - (1.155.361) - (1.155.361)
Change in inrerest accrued 1.313.412 (17.321) 2842124 101.045 +.239.260
Amounts written off - - {3.403.021) - (3.403.021)
As at 31 December 2018 149.850.968 475511 112.36.675 1. 801.045 264 496.999
Loans ro
legal entities Srage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 POCT Total
Allowance for ECL as at 1 Januarv

2018 1.089 879 130.166 27.607,329 - 28.827 374
New assers originated or purchased 1.917.639 - - 14.755 1.932.394
Assers repaid (27.712) (4.643) (522.248) - (554.603)
Transfers to Stage 1 9.757.171 (7.389.406) (2.367.765) - =
Transfers to Stage 2 (6.698 540 33.889.045 (27.190,505) - -
Transfers to Stage 3 (2.338.908) {33.094.594) 35435502 = =

Changes 1n vear end ECL of exposures

transferred berween stages and changes

to inputs (1.543.181) 06409452 5.641.994 - 10.576.245
Changes ro contractual cash flows due ro

modificanons not resulting in

derecognurion - - (925.295) ~ (925.295)
Unwinding of discount — - 1.789.926 - 1.789.926
Amounts written off — - (3.405.021) - (3.403.021)
As at 31 December 2018 2.156.348 — 36.071.917 14.755 38.243.020
Loans to
individuals ) Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Gross carrying value as at 1 January 2018 335115349 2241314 6.377.065 42.129.728
New assers otiginated or purchased 7.033.989 = = 7033989
Asserts repaid (6.781.772) (1.528.738) (371.627) (8:682.137)
Transfers ro Stage 1 §.943.283 (7.152.745) (1.794.538) -
Transfers to Stage 2 (9.356.882) 18413329 (9.056.447) -
Transfers ro Srage 3 (2.067.103) (11.381.219) 13.448.322 -
Changes to contractual cash flows due ro modificatons nor

resulnng in derecognition - - (132.388) (132.388)
Change in interest accrued (77.429) 11.324 320544 254.239
Amounts written off - - (260.929) (260.929)
As at 31 December 2018 31.205.435 603 265 8.533.802 40.342 502

ba
wn
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8. Loans to customers (continued)

Provision for impairment of loans to customers (continued)

Loans to
individuals Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Allowance for ECL as at 1 January 2018 33.240 73.045 1.223.745 1.330.030
New assets onginared or purchased 164.985 -~ - 164.985
Assets repaid (5.624) (1.220) (27.353) (34.197)
Transfers to Stage 1 3015 569 (199.453) (106.116) -
Transfers to Stage 2 (69.735) 1.778.072 (1.708.337) -
Transfers to Stage 3 (3.4506) (1.553.529) 1.556.985 -
Changes in vear end ECL of exposures transferred berween

stages and changes to mputs 238.800) (96.915) 595.583 259868
Changes ro contracrual cash flows due ro modifications not

resulting in derecognition - - (8.117) (8.117)
Unwinding of discount -~ - 41.775 41.775
Amounts written off - - (260.929) (260.929)
As at 31 December 2018 186.179 — 1.307.236 1.493.415

Modified and restructured loans

The Company derecognises a financial asset, such as a loan to a customer, when the terms and conditions have been
tenegotiated to the extent that, substantally, it becomes 1 new loan, with the difference recognised as a derecognition gain or
loss, to the extent that an impairment loss has not already been recorded. The new! v recogmised loans are classified as Stage 1
for ECL measurement purposes, unless the new loan 1s deemed to be POCL

If the modification does not result in cash flows that are substantially different, the modification does not result in
derecogminion. Based on the change mn cash flows discounted ar the onginal EIR, the Company records a modification gain
or loss, to the extent that an impairment loss has not already been recotded.

The rable below includes Stage 2 and 3 assets that were modified during the period, with the related modification loss suffered
by the Company.

2019
Loans maodified during the period
Amortised cost before modificaton 23.623.147
Net loss from modification (303.107)
2018
Loans modified during the period
Amortised cost before modification 15.084.188
Net loss from modification (1.287.749)

Collateral and other credit enhancements

The amount and type of collateral required depends on an assessment of the credit sk of the counterparty. Guidelines are
implemented regarding the acceptability of types of collateral and valuation paramerers.

The man types of collateral obtamed are as follows:

. for commercial lending — collateral of residential and commercial premuses, equipment, vehicles, puarantees and other
assets;
° for retail lending — collateral of residential properties, vehicles, guarantees und other assets.

Management monitors the marker value of collareral and requests additional colliteral 1n accordance with the underlying
agreement during its review of the adequacy of the allowance for loan impairment.
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8. Loans to customers (continued)

Collateral and other credit enhancements (continued)

[n the absence of collateral or other credir enhancements, the ECL allowance on loans to customers of Stage 3 as at 31
December would be higher by

2019 2018

Loans to legal entities 117.208.183 75.661.530
Loans ro individuals N 6.516.321 5.948.792
123.724.504 81.610.348

It 1s the Company’s policy to dispose of repossessed properties in an ordetly fashion. The proceeds are used fo reduce or
tepay the outstanding claim. In general, the Company does not occupy repossessed properties for busmess use. The carrying
value of the assets repossessed during the peniod and held as ar the reporting dare 1= as follows:

31 December 31 December

2019 2018

Land plots 276.907 771.286
Other assets - 1.603.403 93.453
Total repossessed collateral 1.880.310 864.739

Repossessed collateral is recorded within assets held for sale in the statement of financial position,

Concentration of loans issued to customers

As at 31 December 20119, the Company had a concentration of loans represented bv KZT 57,644,728 thousand due ftom the
ten largest unrelated parties or 16" of gross loan pottfolio (31 December 2018: KZT 41,715,935 thousand or 16% of gross
loan pottfolio).

In 2019, the loss of KZT 22,932,676 thousand (2018: KZT 24,251,114 thousand) tesulting from recognition of fair values of
loans granted to customers in 2019 at below market rate, which were financed by the Sharcholder, was recaognized within
equity as increase in the provision for notional distabution (Nowe 21).

9. Investment securities

Investment secunties comprise:

31 December 31 December
2019 2018

Corporate bonds of KazAgroFinance JSC 606.258 =
606.258 =

Less ECL allowance (1.362) =
Investment securities measured at amortised cost 604.896 =

As ar 31 December 2019, securities measured at amortised cost are locared to Stage 1 for ECL measurement purposes.
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10. Finance lease receivables

The analysis of finance lease recevables as of 31 December 2019 1s presented below:

Gross investments in finance leases

Unearned fnance income on finance lease of

future periods
Investments into finance lease

ECL allowance
Finance lease receivables

An analysis of changes in the gross carrying value and corresponding ECL on accounts receivable on fin

JI December
2019
Later than 1
year and not
Not later than later than 5 More than

1 year years 5 years Toral
3.245.186 1.699.123 = 4.944.309
(111551 (310.233) - (421.884)
3.133.635 1.388.790 - 4.522.425
(1.337.200) (897.£19) - (2.235.019)
1.796.435 490,971 - 2.287.406

vear ended 31 December 2019 is as follows:

ance lease for the

Gross carrying amount at 1
January

KAP merger (Note 5)

New assets onginated or
purchased

Assets repaid

Transfers to Stage 1

Transfers to Stage 2

Transfers to Stage 3

Change in interest accrued

As at 31 December

2019
Srage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Pocr Total
= = 3.705.045 = 3.705.045
779.623 = = o 779.623
(779.623) 779.623 = = &
= = 37.757 = 37.757
—~ 779.623 3.742.802 = 4.522.425

ECL allowance for finance lease receivables

A reconciliation of the provision for ECL on accounts receivable on finance lea

follows:

se for the vear ended 31 December 2019 is as

ECL allowance as at 1
January

KAP merger (Note 5)

New assets origmated or
purchased

Assers repaid

Transfers to Stage 1

Transfers to Stage 2

Transfers to Stage 3

Changes in vear end ECL of
exposures rransferred
between stages and changes
to mputs

As at 31 December

2019
Stage 1 Stage 2 Srage 3 POCI Toral
- = 1.761.598 = 1.761.598
11.926 = = = 11.926
(11.926) 11.926 = = -
- = 461.495 = 461.495
= 11.926 2.223.093 = 2.235.019
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11. Investment property

The movements in investment property were as follows:

Cost

As at 31 December 2017
Addinons

As at 31 December 2018

Addinons

KAP merger (Note 3)
Disposal

As at 31 December 2019

Accumulated depreciation
As at 31 December 2017
Deprectation charge

As at 31 December 2018

Deprecianion charge
KAP merger (Nore 3)
Disposal

As at 31 December 2019

Carrving amount
As at 31 December 2018
As at 31 December 2019

Buildings

426.300
18.966

+5.2606

236.842
(152.634)

529.474

(88.606)
(10.936)

(99.542)

(11.484)
(60.319)
89.692

(81.653)

345,724

447.821

Income from lease of investment property amounted to KZT 34,515 thousand for 2019 (2018: KZT 43,599 thousand).

12. Property, plant and equipment

The movements in property, plant and equipment were as follows:

Cost

As at 31 December 2017
Addittons

Disposals

As at 31 December 2018

Additons

KAP merger Note 5)
Disposals

As at 31 December 2019

Accumulated depreciation
As at 31 December 2017
Deprecation charge
Disposals

As at 31 December 2018

Deprecation chatge
KAP merger (Note 5)
Disposals

As at 31 December 2019

Carrying amount
As at 31 December 2018
As at 31 December 2019

Machinery
and Motor

Land  equipment velicles Other Toral
5.397 312.019 106.188 91.615 515.219
- 69.443 105.817 29.010 204.270

- (10.881) (10.990) (3.139) (25.010)
5397 370.581 201.015 117.486 694479
— 65.712 = 18.528 84.240
100 12.910 27.041 14.428 54.479
(5.397) (12.007) (16.671) (4.855) (38.930)
100 437.196 211.385 145.587 794.268
- (191.368) (33317) (46.478) (273.163)

= (51412) (22.951) (8.376) (82.739)

— 10.739 10.990 24061 24.190

= (232.041) (47.278) (52.393) (331.712)

- (52.954) (24.161) (10.616) (87.731)

- (9.088) (13.160) (12.953) (35.201)

- 11.935 12.110 3.831 27.876
= (282.148) (72.489) (72.131) (426.768)
3397 138.540 153.737 65.093 362.767
100 155.048 135.896 73.456 367.500

20
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13. Intangible assets

The movements in intangible assers were as follows:

Cost

As at 31 December 2017
Additions

As at 31 December 2018

Additions
As at 31 December 2019

Accumulated depreciation
As at 31 December 2017
Deprecianon charge

As at 31 December 2018

Depreciation charge
As at 31 December 2019

Carrying amount
As at 31 December 2018

As at 31 December 2019

14. Other assets

Other non-financial assets comprnise:

Advances paid

Inventories

Other

Other non-financial assets

Orher financial assers comprise:

Accounts recervable

Less ECL allowance
Other financial assets

Software

615.750)
145.909

759.659

20.788

780.447

(384.791)
(77.040)

(461.831)

(63.963)
(525.794)
297.828
254.653
31 December 31 Decemnber
2019 2018
12.986 88.437
130.034 13.840
226.421 48.432
369.441 150.709
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
8.643.231 320.039
8.643.231 3201039
(7.349.391) (196.428)
1.293.840 123.611

Other accounts receivable mainlv represent accounts recevable recerved as a result of KAP merger i 2019 (Note 3) from

companies engaged in cattle feeding,
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14. Other assets (continued)

An analysis of changes in the gross carrying value and corresponding ECL on accounts receivable during the vear ended 31

December 2019 1s as follows:

2019

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 POocCt Total
Gross carrying amount at 1 January - 125.622 194.417 - 320.039
KAP merger (Nore 5) - 1.190 8.280.055 - 8.281.245
New assets onginated or purchased 51.429 - - - 51.429
Assets repaid - (651) (12.046) — (12.697)
Transfers to Stage | - - - - -
Transfers to Stage 2 (51.429) 51.429 = = -
Transfers to Stage 3 - (764) 764 - -
Change 1n interest accrued - 3.714 (499) - 3.215
As at 31 December ~ 180.540 8.462.691 - 8.643.231

A reconciliation of the provision for ECL on accounts recervable for the vear ended 31 December 2019 is as follows:

2019
Stage 1 Stage 2 Staoe 3 POCT Total

ECL allowance as at 1 January - 2.010 194 418 - 196.428
KAP merger (Note 3) - 225 6.942.425 - 6.942.650
New assets onginated or purchased 1.864 - - - 1.864
Assets repud - (3) (4.250) — (4.253)
Transfers to Stage 1 (1.864) 1.864 - - -
Transfers ro Srage 2 - - - - -
Transfers 1o Stage 3 - (764) 764 - -
Changes 1 vear end ECL of

exposures transferred between stages

and changes to mputs e (3.108) 215.810 - 212.702
Unwinding of discount - o - =
As at 31 December - 224 7.349.167 - 7.349.391

An analysis of changes in the gross carrying value and corresponding ECL on accounts recervable duting the year ended 31

December 2018 15 as follows:

2018

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 POCT Total
Gross carrying amount at 1 January - 486.912 77760 - 564.672
New assets originated or purchased = 202 - o 902
Assets repard - (192.362) (53.173) - (245.535)
Transfers to Srage 1 = = = = _
Transfers to Stage 2 - = - - =
Transfers to Stage 3 = (169.830) 169 830 &= -
Change 1 interest accrued = — = = =
As at 31 December - 125.622 194.417 - 320.039
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14. Other assets (continued)

A reconctlianon of the provision for ECL on accounts receivable for the vear ended 31 December 2018 is as follows:

2018
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 POCT Total
ECL allowance as at 1 January - 34.043 Ri421 - 114464
New assers onginated or purchased 211 - - - 211

Assets repaid (211) (292) - - (503)
Transfers to Srage 1 =
Transfers to Stage 2 - = =
Transfers to Stage 3 - (112:952) 112952 - —
Changes mn vear end ECL of

exposures transferred between stages

and changes to inputs - 80.708 1.548 = 82.256
As at 31 December — 1.507 194921 = 196,428

15.  Amounts due to the Shareholder

Amounts due to the Shareholder consist of the following:

Nominal interest 31 December 31 December
Maturity  rate pera year, % Currency 2019 2018
The loan under contracr No. 81 21 June
2020 14,5-15,5% Tenge 36.385.643 36.061.366
The loan under contract No. 61 24 August
2032 ,32-1,02% Tenge 27.128.094 14.465.214
The loan under contract No. 32 14 December
2032 1,0%% Tenge 17.139.713 -
The loan under contract Na. 76 14 December
2025 1,0% Tenge 13.903.823 15.770.443
The loan under contract No. 101 14 December
2033 1,0% Tenge 12.921.363 =
The loan under contract No. 85 14 December
2025 1,0% Tenge 10.509.809 11.915.618
The loan under contract No. 122 14 December
2025 1.0% Tenge 10.453.030 11.860.276
The loan under contract No. 135 14 December
2032 1,0% Tenge 9.212.303 11 868.865
The loan under contract No. 136 14 December
2032 L% Tenge 9.212.303 11.868.865
31 December
Investment loan under contracr No 36 2023 1,02% Tenge 4.256.906 5.586.77()
Due under rhe assignment agreement 20 December
dated 3 July 2018 2024 5,0% Tenge 2.170.163 2.932.227
Due under the debr transfer agreement 9 December
dared 3 Julv 2018 2024 3.0% Tenge 1.017.761 1.199.325
The loan under contract No. 70 13 Ocrober
2024 1,02% Tenge 692.538 801.542
The loan under contracr No. 124 | December
2022 10,00 Tenge 211.139 269.642
Due under the assignment agreement No. 29 October
35-4/322 dated 1 August 2018 2019 5.0% Tenge - 1.702.360
The loan under contract No. 148 9 December
2019 9.0%% Tenge - 1.507.991
The loan under conrracr No. 148 9 December
2019 1,0% Tenge - 77.844
155.214.588 127 888 348

15. Due to the Shareholder (continued)

The loan under contract No. 32
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On 27 February 2019 the Company entered into Lending Agreement No. 32 wirth the Shareholder. The loan is intended for
lending to agromndustrial complex facilities to finance projects for the development of beef farming, dairy industry, processing
of meat and crop products, food production, for the purchase of irrigation systems, as well as crop farming. The interest rate
used by the Company to determine the value of the loan at the date of initial recogmtion was 7.3% per annum.

The loan under contract No. 61

On 24 August 2017 the Company entered into Lending Agreement No. 61 with the Shareholder. The interest rates used by
the Company to determimne the value of the loan at the date of initial recognition were 7.6-8.6% per annum. The loans are
mtended ro direct funds to the agriculrral entinies for the implementation of a set of measures aimed at creation, expansion
and moderisarion of matertal production, production infrastructure in the agriculrural sector.

The loan under contract No. 101

On 31 December 2019 the Company entered mto Lending Agreement No. 101 with the Shareholder. The loan is infended
for lending to agroindustnal complex facilities to fnance projects for the development of beef farming, dary industry,
processing of mear and crop products, food production, for the purchase of irriganion systems, as well as crop farming. The
amount of KZT 20,000,000 thousand was received under this agreement. The interest rate used by the Company to determine
the value of the loan at the date of initial recognition was 7.9%% per annum.

During 2019, the difference between the nominal and fair value of loans received from the Shareholder at the date of initial
recognition, as well as the effect of changes in loans conditions for a total of KZT 23,697 782 thousand (2018: KZT 22,203,644
thousand) was recognised by the Company as part of additional paid-in capital (Nore 21).

As at 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018, there ate no obligations to comply with financial covenants related to
pavables to the Shareholder.
16. Due to credit institutions

Amounts due to credit institutions include loans from the following banks:

Nominal
interest rate per 31 December 31 December
Maturity date a year, % Currency 2019 2018
ATF Bank JSC 3 February 2020 10,5% Tenge 9.876.118 6.981.087
Bank Center Credit JSC 19 Apnl 2019 10,5% Tenge - 2.565.558

9.876.118 9.546.645

On 25 Apul 2019 and 21 May 2019, the Company received short-term loans from ATF Bank JSC for the total amounrt of
KZT 9,800,000 rhousand with maruriry unnl 3 February 2020 under the Credir Faciliry Agreement No. MKO20-2019 dated
27 February 2019.

On 29 November 2018 and 19 December 2018, the Company received short-term loans from ATF Bank JSC for the roral
amount of KZT 6,921,052 thousand with marunty untl 19 April 2019 under the Credit F acility Agreement No. MK126-2018
dated 29 November 2018.
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17. Debt securities issued

Debrt securities 1ssued consisted of the fu]lo\\-'ing:

Rate per 31 December 3 December
Maturity  a year, % Currency 2019 2018
Fixed income bonds (1st ssue of the 3d 30 December 857 Tenge
bond Programme) 2021 23.874.632 23.854.501
Fixed income bonds (2nd issue of the 2nd 17 December  8.0% Tenge
bond programme) 2022 17.968.126 17.890.515
Fixed mcome bonds (1st 1ssue of the 2nd 20 Febmary  85% Tenge
bond programme) 2023 10.173.689 10.138.235
Fixed income bonds (2nd 1ssue of the 3d 22 June 2026 14.0% Tenge
bond programme) 5.365.966 5.015.730
Fixed income honds (Ist1ssue of the 4th 10 October  10,8% Tenge
bond programme) 2026 28.958.565 -
Debt securities issued 86.340.978 56.898.981

18.  Due to state and state-financed organisations

Program for the development of productive employment and mass entrepreneurship for 2018-2021

Since 2017, the Company has been attracting funds from local executive bodies within the framework of the Program for the
development of productive employment and mass entrepreneurship for 2017-2021, approved by the Decree of the
Government of the Republic of Kazakhstan No. 919 dated 29 December 2016. The loans with nominal interest rates of 0.01%
per annum are intended for funding microfinance instrutions and credit cooperatives for crediting business projects under
the Program. The inferest rates used by the Company in determining the value of loans ar initial recogmition were 7.14%-
8.93% per annum. As ar 31 December 2019, the amount due from the Company within the framework of this Program 1s
KZT 33,346,949 thousand (31 December 2018: KZT 19,897,208 thousand).

Employment Roadmap 2020

In August 2016, the Company entered into two loan agreements with the Srare Institution “Administration of
entrepreneurship, industrial-innovative development and tounism of the South-Kazakhstan oblast” and akimat of the Almary
oblast within the framework of the implementation of the Roadmap 2020 approved by the Decree of the Government of the
Republic of Kazakhstan No. 162 dated 30 September 2015. The funds received under the above agreements bear nomnal
interest rates of 0.01% per annum. The loans are intended for ensunng sustanable and balanced growth of regional
entrepreneurship in mral areas for 2016-2017, as well as to supporr existing and create new permanent jobs wirhin the
framework of the Emplovment Roadmap 2020 The interest rates used by the Company in determining the value of loans at
mitial recognition were 13.3% per annum. As at 31 December 2019 the amounts due from the Company on these agreements
1s KZT 3,088,154 thousand (31 December 2018: KZT 2.737.477 thousand).

Duting 2019, the difference between the nominal and fair value of loans received from state and state-financed organisations
at the dare of imtial recognition for a total amount of KZT 6244717 thousand (2018: KZT 5,461,231 thousand) was
recognised by the Company as part of addinonal pad-in capital (Nore 21).

19. Other liabilities

Orther non-financal labilines compiise:

31 December 31 December
2019 2018

Subsidizing of interest rates by the Alinistrv of Agriculture of the Republic of
cazakhstan as su agriculture 1.971.296 571.025
Other taxes pavable 115.857 29.192
Other - 84.401 43.390
Other non-financial liabilities 2.171.554 643.607
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19.  Other liabilities (continued)
Other financial liabilites comprisc:

31 December 31 December

2019 2018

ECL allowance on contingencies (Nofe 24) 1.255.464 §22.999
Due under the assignment agreemenr 537.662 1.983.272
Accounts payable o 266.907 238.645
Other financial liabilities 2.060.033 3.044.916

As ar 31 December 2019 and 2018, other habilines of the Company include amounts recerved from the Ministry of Agriculture
of the Republic of Kazakhstan to reimburse the subsidized portion of interest on loans granted ro customers for the acquisttion
of farm animals under budget program 056 “Subsidizing interest rates on loans, and leasing of technological equipment and
agticulmural machinery”

The amount due under the assignimenr agreement comprised:

Nominal interest 31 December 31 December

Marurity date  rate per a year, % Currency 2019 2018

Bank of Astana [SC 31 July 2022 3% Tenge 537.662 708.468

KazMeat LLP 10 November 2028 2.0-10,6" Tenge - 1.199.287

KazAgroProduct JSC 10 Ocrober 2028 4.0% Tenge - 75.517
Due under the

assignment
agreement 537.662 1.983.272

As part of debt recovery measures with respect to Bank of Astana JSC in 2018, the Company concluded 7 claim assignment
agreements for a total amount of K 27T 8,886,585 thousand as repayment of debt to the Company for a rotal amount of KZT
8,112,591 thousand. The amount of KZT 537,662 thousand 1s payable by the Company according to the approved schedule,
with matunty unnl 2022 and a nominal interest rare of 3.0% per annum (the effective interest tate 1s 7.58% per annum).

In 2019, the Company’s debr ro KazMeat LLP was transferred to KAP.

20. Taxation

The corporate income tax expense: comprise:

o 2019 2018

Current corporate income tax charyre (2.274.634) (571.488)
Deferred corporate income tax expense- ongination and decrease of temporary

differences (1.791.648) (2.400.526)

Corporate income tax expenses (4.066.282) (2.972.014)

o 2019 2018

Deferred corporate mcome tax recognised in the statement of profir or loss (1.791.648) (2.400.526)

Deferred corporate mcome tax recognised in equaty - (676.621) 9.118

Change in deferred corporate income tax (2.468.269) (2.391.408)

As ar 31 December 2019 the Company's current corporate mcome tax liabilities amounted to KZT 135,976 thousand. As ar
31 December 2018, current corporate income rax assers of the Company amounted to KZT 359,009 thousand. Corporate
mcome tax rate for the Company was 20.0% 1n 2019 and 2018.

35
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20.

Taxation (continued)

The effecrive CIT rate differs from the statutory CIT rates. Below is the reconciliation of income fax expenses based on

statutory rate with mcome tax expenses recorded in the financial statements:

Profit before corporate income rax expense
Statutory corporate income tax rate

Theoretical corporate income tax expenses at the statutory rate

Non raxable income from government securities
Non-deducnble expenses

Corporate income tax expenses

o 2019 2018
20.100.318 13.347.631
20% 20%
(4.020.064) (2.669.526)
620.385 906.707
(666.603) (604.219)
(4.066.282) (2.972.014)

Deferred mcome tax assets and liubilines, and their movement for respective vears compnsed the following at 31 December:

Tax effect of deductible

temporary differences
Loans to customers
Amounts due from banks
Orther ussets

Current provisions

Deferred corporate income

1ax assets

Tax effect of taxable
temporary differences

Amaounts due to the
Shareholder

Due to state and stare-
tfnanced organsations

Property, plant and equipment

nd inrangble assets

Deferred corporate income

tax liabilities

Net deferred corporate
mcome tax
assets/ (habilities)

By assers
By habilines

Orngination and reversal of

Origination and reversal of

CIT benefit recognised in equity

temporary differences temiporary differences
Effect of In the In the
adoption of  seatement statement
IFRS 9  of profit or Within of profit or Within
2017 loss equity 2018 loss equity 2019
3.009.14 562850 (1.622.064) 4.850.223 G 8. 2048 (2.618.464) 4.5806.535 8.858.279
45542 LI6G046 (1380070 GU1.RT70 B27.272 (599.445) 725.343 953.170
18.005¢ = (1T - 7.300 (2.587) = 4.719
45.330 = 23,562 = GRO0| 5.703 - 74.604
3018000 1.628.896 (2995.302) 5.542.093 1.7493.647 (3.214.793) 5.311.878 9.890.772
(502965 = 239177 (4440729 (4704.520) 951.508  (4.739.556)  (8.492.568)
(1319174 - /1T [LOV2.240)  (2054.80) 508.435  (1.248.943)  (2.795.317)
(31120 - (1L.012) = (52.134) (36.798) i (88.936)
(1.873.204) = SUATT0 (5532975) (611467 L423.445  (5.988.499)  (1L376.821)
1L.744.732 1628806 (2.4K0.526) Y118 982221 (L.791.648) (676.621) (1.486.049)
Deferred corporate income tax tecognized m equity is allocated as follows:

2019 2018

5.311.878 5.542.093

~ (5.988.499) (5.532.975)

(676.621) 9118
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20. Taxation (continued)

Deferred corporate income rax a:sets are recogmsed only ro rthe extent that ir is probable that the furure taxable profit will be
available agminst which an asset can be urilized.

21. Equity
Below is information on movement of declared, issued and fully paid common shares of the Company:
Number of shares Nominal value

(pieces) (tenge) Tortal
As at 31 December 2017 158.630.371 1.000,00 158.630.371
[ssne of share capiral - = —
As at 31 December 2018 158.630.371 1.000,00 158.630.371
Increase i the share capital 9.494.625 966,77 9.179.163
As at 31 December 2019 168.124.996 998,12 167.809.534

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, 168,124,996 outstanding ordinary shares of the Company were fully paid by the sole
Shareholder.

In December 2019, the Company placed otdinary shares to the sole Shareholder in the amount of 2,494 625 shares at a price
of 966.77 tenge for the amount of KZT 9,179,163 thousand in exchange for ordinary shares of KAP as part of the merger.

Duning 2019, in accordance with the decision of the sole Shareholder dared 31 May 2019, the Company declared and pad
dividends in the amount of KZT 10,375,617 thousand or KZT 65.41 per one common share for the vear ended 31 December
2 8.

In 2018, 1n accordance with the decision of the sole Shareholder dated 11 May 2018, the Company declared and paid dividends
mn the amount of KZT 4,189,685 thousand or KZT 26.41 per one common share for the vear ended 31 December 2017.

In accordance with the policy of the Companr, the reserve capital 1s created for general risks including future losses and other
unforeseen nsks and obligations. The reserve ca pral 1s subject to distribution on the basis of the Shareholder’s decision.

Presented below 1s movement in items of additional pad-in capital and provisions for 2018 and 2019:

Reserve for

Additional paid- notional
Reserve funds in capital distribution
1 January 2019 5.339.751 34.670.854 (46.219.772)
Reserve for notional distaburion for the vear (Notes 7, 8) == = (26.559.393)
Tax effect of recognition of provision for notional
distibution (Nore 20) = = 5.311.878
Income from initial recognition of loans from rthe
Shareholder and state instimtions ar fair value (Notes 15,
18) - 29.942.499 -
Tax effecr from initial recognition of loans from the
Shareholder at fair value (Note 20 = (5.988.499) -
As at 31 December 2019 5.339.751 58.624.854 (67.467.287)
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21.  Equity (continued)

Reserve for

Additional paid- notional
Reserve funds in capital distribution
At 1 January 2018 2.546.627 12.538.954 (24.051.401)
Reserve for notional distribution (or the perod (Nores 7,
8) - - (27.710.464)
Tax effect of recogmtion of provision for notional
disrribution (Note 20) = = 5.542.093
Income from mitial recognition of loans from rthe
Shareholder and stare institutions at fair value (Notes 15,
18) - 27.664.875 -
Tax effect from migal recognition of loans from the
Shareholder at fatr value (Note 20) = (5.532.975) =
Increase of rthe reserve capital against the retained
earnings 2.793.124 — -
As at 31 December 2018 5.339.751 34.670.854 (46.219.772)

As at 31 December 2019, the Company’s book value per commeon share calculated in accordance with Kazakhsran Srock
Exchange methodology 1s:

31 December 31 December

o 2019 2018

Assers 462.931.167 372295367
Less inrangible assets (254.653) (297.828)
Less liabilines _ (294.093.422) (221.001.689)
Net assets 168.583.092 150.995 850
Number of ordinary shares, pleces 168.124.996 158.630.371
Book value per ordinary share (tenge) 1.002,72 951,87

Earnings per share

Basic and diluted earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profir for the year artriburable to common shareholders
by the weighted average number of shates outstanding dunng the vear.

The following reflects the income and share dara used in the basic earnings per share computations for the vears ended 31
December:

31 December 31 December
- 2019 2018
Ner profit attributable to the Sharcholder for calculanng basic and diluted
earnings per share 16.034.036 10.375.617
Weighred average number of common shares for basic and diluted earnings
per share 159.332.713 158.630.371
Basic and diluted earnings per common shate (in renge) 100,63 65,41

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, the Company did nor have any financial instruments diluting earmings per share.
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22.  Credit loss expense

The table below discloses the FCIL expenses on financial instruments recorded in the statement of profit or loss for the vear

ended 31 December 2019:

Notes Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 POCI Total
Cash and cash equivalents 6 (3.131) = = = (3.131)
Amounrs due from banks 7 (4.985.903) = (364.523) - (5.350.420)
Loans to customers 8 (8.194.564) (348.292) 19.761.488 984.157  12.202.789
Investment securities 1.362 = = = 1.362
Orher financial assets 14 1.864 (3.111) 211.560 = 210.313
Finance lease recervables 10 11.926 = 461.495 = 473.421
Undrawn loan commitments 24 432.465 e - = 432.465
Total credit loss expense (12.735.981) (351.403)  20.070.020 984.157 7.966.793

The table below discloses the ECL expenses on financial instruments recorded n the statement of profit or loss for the vear

ended 31 December 20185:

Nortes Stage | Stage 2 Stage 3 POCI Total
Cash and cash equivalents 6 5.597 = = = 5.597
Amounts due from banks 7 (4.531.926) 457 581 (2 367.933) = (6.442.278)
Loans ro customers 8 267.307 6.366.654 4762.564 14755  11.411.280
Investment securities (1.970) - - (1.970)
Other financial assets 14 = 80416 1.548 = 81.964
Undrawn loan commitments 24 22.305 = = = 22.305
Total credit loss expense (4 238.687) (6.904.651 2396.179 14.755 5.076.898
23. Personnel and other operating expenses
Personnel and other operanng expenses compnse:

2019 2018

Personnel expenses and other payments (3.041.643) (2.574.133)
Soctal securiry costs (287.285) (236.382)
Personnel expenses (3.328.928) (2.810.515)
Legal and advisory services (598.757) (648.465)
Occupancy and rent (406.071) (408.990)
Depreciation and amornsatnon (Notes 11, 12, 13) (163.178) (170.715)
Marketing and advernsing (93.232) (103.595)
Busmness tp expenses (87.826) (83.427)
State duty (86.030) (1.491)
Insurance expenses (78.024) (66.697)
Taxes other rthan mncome tax (76.594) (107.352)
Communication services (57.896) (40.933)
Property, plant and equipment muintenance (57.151) (41.513)
Matenals (42.804) (48.277)
Personnel training (19.669) (21.211)
Assessment of collateral (19.472) (29.241)
Bank services (17.093) (19.581))
Chariry and sponsorship expenses (14.155) (39.912)
Other o (282.109) (206.862)
Other operating expenses (2.100.061) (2.038.261)
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24.  Commitments and contingencies

Commitments and contingencies
As at 31 December 2019, the Company’s commitments and contingencies compnsed the following:

31 December
2019 31 December 2018

Credit related commitments

Undrawn loan commitments 93.469.181 59.741.155
Less ECL allowance (1.255.464) (822.999)
92.213.7117 58.918.1306

Operating lease commitments
Not later than 1 year _ = 16.029
92.213.717 58.934.185

Most of these credit related commitments may terminate without being partially or fully funded. As a result, the contractual
credit relared commitments indicated in the table above do not represent the expected outflow of cash. Contngencies to
extend loans do not reptesent unconditional obligations of the Company.

An analysis of changes in the ECL allowance for the vear ended 31 December 2019 is as follows:

Undrawn loan commitments Srage 1
ECL allowance as at 1 January 2018 800.694
Changes in ECL for the vear 22.305
As at 31 December 2018 822,999
Changes in ECL for the vear 432.465
As at 31 December 2019 1.255.464

Operating environment

Kazakhstan continues economic reforms and development of its legal, rax and regulatory frameworks as required by a marker
economy. The future stability of the Kazakhstani economy s largely dependent upon these reforms and developments and
the effecuveness of economic, finuncial and monetary measures undertaken by the sovernment. Tn 2019, the volatihity of the
tenge’s exchange rate against major foreign currencies continued to have a negative impact on the Kazakhstan economy. The
management of the Company believes that it is taking appropriate measures to support the sustamability of the Company’s
business in the cutrent circumstances.

Taxation

Kazakh tax, currency and customs legislation is subject fo varving interpretations, and changes, which can occur frequently.
Management's interpretation of such legislation as applied ro the transactions and actvity of the Company may be challenged
by the relevant regional and republic authorities. \s such, significant additional taxes, penalties and interest mav be assessed.
Tax periods remain open to review by relevant authorities for five calendar years preceding the vear of tax review. Under
certain circumstances reviews may cover longer periods,

Asat 31 December 2019 and 2018, management of the Company believes thar its interpretation of the legislation 1s appropriate
and that the Company’s tax, curtency and customs positions will be sustained.
Legal matters

In the ordinary course of business, the Company 1s subject to legal actions and complaints. Management believes that the
ultimate liability, if any, arising from such actons or complaints will not have a material adverse effect on the financial
condition or the results of furire operations of the Company.
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25.  Risk management

Introduction

Risk 1s inherent in the Company s activities. The Company manages these risks through a process of ongoing identification,
measurement and monitonng, subject to risk limits and other conrrols. This process of risk management is critical to the
Company’s continuing profitability and each individual within the Company 1s accountable for the nsk exposures relating to
his or her responsibilities. The Company is exposed to credit nsk, liquidity risk and market risk. It also subject to operating
risks.

The independent risk control process does nor include business tisks such as chunges in the environment, technology and
mdustry. They are monitored thr wugh the Company’s strategic planning process.

Risk manageront structure

The Board of Directors is ultimately responsible for idennifying and controlling risks; however, there are separate independent
bodies responsible for managing ind monitoring nsks,

Board of Derectors

The Board of Ditectors 1s tesponsible for the overall risk management approach and for approving the risk strategies and
prnciples.

Meanagement Board

The Management Board has the tesponsibility to monitor the overall risk process within the Company.

Coniral of risks

The Risk Management Unit 15 tesponsible for introduction and performance of risk management related procedures in order
to ensure an independent control process as well as compliance with principles, risk management policies and risk limirs across
the Company. The Risk Management Department consists of two structural units: the Department of financial dsks and the
Department of credit nisks.

Treasury department

The Company Treasury is responsible for managing the Company’s assets and liabilities and the overall financial structure. Tt
is also primarily responsible for the funding and liquidity nisks of the Company.

Internal aidit function

Risk management processes thronshour the Company are andited annually by the internal audit function, that examines bath
the adequacy of the procedures and the Company’s compliance with the procedures. Internal Audit discusses the results of
all assessments with management. and reports its findings and recommendations to the Management Board and Boards of
Directors.

Resk measurement and rEporting systen.

The Company’s nisks are measured using a method which reflects both the expected loss likely to arise in normal circumstances
and unexpected losses, which are an estmate of the ultimate actual loss based on stanstical models.

Monitoring and controlling risks 15 primanly performed based on limits established by KazAgro for the Company. These
limuts reflecr the business strategy :ind marker environment of the ( “ompany.

Information compiled from all the businesses is examined and processed in order to analyse, control and identify early nsks.
This information is presented and explained to the Management Board, Board of Directors, and the head of each business
division. The report includes aggtesate credit exposure, credit merric forecasts, hold limit exceprions, hiquidirty ratios and nsk
profile changes. On a monrhly basis detailed reporting of industry and customer risks takes place. The Board of Directors
recerves a4 comprehensive risk report once a quarter which is designed to provide all the necessary information to assess and
conclude on the nisks of the Compan.
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25. Risk management (continued)

Introduction (continued)

Exceisive risk concentration

In order to avoid excessive concenrrations of risks, the Company’s policies and procedures include specific guidelines to focus
on maintaining a diversified portfolio. Identified concentrations of credit risks are controlled and managed accordingly.

Credit risk

Credit nisk 1s the nisk that the Company will incur a loss because its customers, clicnrs or counterparties fatled to discharge
their contractual obligarions. The C ompany manages and controls credit risk by setting limits on the amount of risk it 1s willing
to accept for individual counterparties and for geographical and industry concentrations, and by monitoring exposures in
telation to such limits. Thus, in order ro avoid a concentration of credit risk in one or a group of affiliates, has been established
a limit of no more than 25.00% of the Company's own equity. Bank-counterparty limits are established by the Shareholder
for mnterbank transactions.

The Company has established a credit quality review process to provide early identification of possible changes in the
creditworthiness of counterpartics, including regular collateral revisions which are performed by separate units of the
Company. The credit quality review process allows the Company to assess the potential loss as a result of the nsks to which
it 15 exposed and undertake corrective action.

The carrving amount of components of the statement of financial position without the influence of risk mitigation through
the use of master netting agreements and collareral agreements, most accurately reflects the maximum credit exposure on
these components.

For more detatl on the maximum exposure to credit nsk for each class of financial instrument, references shall be made to
the specific notes. The effect of collateral and other nisk mingation rechniques is shown in Note §.

Impazrment assessment

The Company calculates ECL based on several probability-weighted scenarios to measure the expected cash shortfalls,
discounted at EIR. A cash shorrfall is the difference berween the cash flows that are due to an entiry in accordance with the
contract and the cash flows that the entity expects to receive. The mechanics of the ECL calculations are outlined below and
the kev elements ate as follows:

PD The Probability of Default is an estimate of the likelihood of detault over a given time horizon. A default
may only happen at a certam time over the assessed period, 1f the facility has not been previously
derecognised and 1s still in the portfolio,

EAD The Exposure at Default 1s an estimate of the exposure ar a furure default date, taking mto account
expected changes i the exposure after the reporting date, including repayments of principal and interest,
whether scheduled by contract or otherwise, expected drawdowns on commirred facilities, and accrued
mterest from missed payments.

LGD The Loss Given Default 1s an estimare of rhe loss arising 1n the case where a default occurs ar a given
time. It 1s based on the difference between the conrracmal cash flows due and those that the lender
would expecr to teceive, including from the realisation of any collateral. It 1s usually expressed as a
percentage of the EAD.

The ECL allowance 1s based on the credit losses expected to anse over the life of the asser (the liferime expected credit loss
or LTECL), unless there has been no significant increase in credit risk since origination, in which case, the allowance is hased
on the 12 months” expected credit loss (12mECL). The 12mECL is the portion of LTECL that tepresent the ECLs that resulr
from default events on a financial mstrument that are possible within the 12 months afrer the reporting date. Both LTECL
and 12mECL are calculated on either an individual basts or a collecave basis, depending on the set significance threshold.
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25.  Risk management (continued)
Credit risk (continued)

Impm'mmf assessrent (continued)

The Company has established a methodoelogy to perform an assessment, ar the end of each reporting petiod, of whether a
financial instrument’s credit nisk has increased significantly since initial recognition, by considering the change in the risk of
default occurting over the remaining life of the financial instrument. Based on the above process, the Company groups irs
loans mto Stage 1, Stage 2, Stage 3 and POCI, as descrbed below:

Stage 1: When loans are first tecognised, the Company recognises an allowance based on 12mECL. Stage 1 loans
also include faciines where the credit risk has improved and the loan has been reclassified from Stage 2.

Stage 2: When a loan has shown a significant increase in credit risk since ongnation, the Company records an
allowance for the LTECL. Stage 2 loans also include facilities, where the credit risk has improved and
the loan has been reclassified from Srage 3.

Stage 3: Loans considered credit-impaired. The Company recognises :n allowance for the LTECL.

POCIL Purchased or ongmated credit impaired (POCI) assets are financial assets that are credit impaired on
ininal recogunion. POCT assets are recorded at fair value at orginal recognition and interest revenue is
subsequently recognised based on a credit-adjusted EIR. ECL are only recognised or released to the
extent that there is a subsequent change in the lifetime expected credir losses.

Definttion of defantt and cure

The Company considers a financiul instrument defaulted and therefore Stage 3 (credit-impaired) for ECL calculations in all
cases when the borrower becomes 60 days past due on its contracrual payments.

As a part of a qualitative assessment of whether a customer 1s in defaulr, the Company also considers a vatiety of instances
thar may indicate unlikeliness to pay. When such events occur, the Company carerully considers whether the event should
result in freating the customer as defaulted and therefore assessed as Stage 3 for ECL calculations or whether Stage 2 is
approprate. Such events include:

. assigning an external credit rating to a counterparty at level D from an external rating agency;,

. restructuring due to deterioration of financial condition of the bortower:

. The borrower is deceased;

® recognising a pledge agreement / loan agreement as invalid by a coutt rling.

. deprivanon of freedom of the borrower under a sanction/ court ruling;

. filing of a clum for declaring the borrower bankrupt in accordance with the legislation of the Republic of Kazakhstan;
. enforcement ar law;

. cross-default (if the information 15 avalable to the Company).

[t 1s the Company’s policy to consider a financial nstrument re-classified out of Stage 3 when none of the default criteria have
been present at the reporting date. The decision as to whether the asser should be clissified to Stage 2 or Stage 1 depends on
the avatlability of evidence of an increase in credir risk at the reporting date from the date of mitial recognition.
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25. Risk management (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

Treasury and interbank relationships

The Company’s treasury and interbank relationships include relanonships with sccond-tier banks, including loans under a
guarantee of second-tier banks, to which external credit ratings are assigned by at least one of the three international rating
agencies (Firch Ratings, Moody's Investors Service, and S&P Global Rarings). To evaluate interbank rransactions with
counterparties, the Company evaluates each counterparty separately. For counrerparties with an external rating provided by
mternanonal rating agencies ot other available sources, the Company uses an assessment of the probability of defaulr according
to the Moody’s Investors Service table (corporate ratings).

Lending to agroindsustrial complex: faci)itics

In case of lending to agromndustrial complex facilities, the Company’s structural units participating in the process of calcularing
provisions work to determine whether there ate signs of a significant increase in credir risk, as well as an impairrment/ default
of the loan. The credit risk assessment is based on vatious historical, current and forecast information. such as:

. Hisrorical financial informution together with forecasts and budgets prepared by the chent. This financial information
mcludes realised and expected results, solvency ratios, hiquidity ratos and any other relevant ratios to measure the
client’s fmancial performarnce.

. AMacroeconomic information,

. Any other objectively supporrable mformation on the quality and abilities of the client’s management relevant for the
company’s performance.

E;k}'_'?ﬂd?l’ft‘ at r:’;:f&«/!

The exposure at default (EAD) represents the gross carrving amount of the financial instruments subject to the impairment
calculanion, addressing both the client’s abiliry to increase its exposure while approaching default and potential eardy
repavments too.

Lois Given Defanlt (LGD)

To determine the loss given default (LGD), the Company accounts for cash returns from the borrower after default (the
recovery rate after default, RR (Cash)) and collateral under the loan. The RR (Cash) dicator is evaluated once a quarter. The
cost of collateral is reviewed evers month.

As part of determining cash flows, monthly cash repayments on default loans (not mcluding the sale of collateral) are analysed
for at least the last 5 years, and monthly cumulative RR(Cash) is calculated for five vears

The credir risk assessment 1s based on a standardised LGD assessment framework thar results in a certain LGD rate. These
LGD rates take info account the expected EAD companson to the amount expected ro be recovered or realised from any
collateral held.

Sionifivant increase in credit risk

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether the credit risk of a financial instrument has increased significantly since
its initial recognition. When making an assessment, the Company focuses on changes in the sk of default over the expected
life of the financial instrument, rather than changes in the amount of expected credit losses. The Company compares the risk
of default on a financial instrument at the reporting date with the risk of default on 4 financial instrument at the date of inital
recogmnion and analyses reasonable and venfiable information available without excessive cost or effort that mndicates a
significant increase in credit nsk sice the initial recognition of the relevant instrument.

If reasonable and venfiable forward-looking information 1s available withour excessive cost or effort, the Company does not
rely solely on the nformaton about overdue payments in determining whether credit nsk has increased significantly since
mitial recogninion. However, when such informarion is not avalable, the Company uses the mformation about overdue
payments and availability of debt restructuring of the borrower in determining whether the credit nisk has ncreased
significantly since the initial recogninion of the asset.

+H



Agranan Credit Corporation Joint Stock Company Notes to 2019 financial statements

(en thowsands of tenge)

25.  Risk management (continued)
Credit risk (continued)

Groupirg financial assets weasured on a collective basis
Dependent on the factors below the Company calculates ECLs either on a colleciive or on an individual basis.
Asser classes where the Compan calculates ECL on an individual basis include:

. all financial assets having ndicarors of impairment and/or default with the rotal amount due exceeding 0.2% of equity
at the prior reporting date according to the financial statements;

. The rreasury and interbank relationships (such as amounts due from banks, cash equivalents and investment securities
ar amortised cost);

] Exposures that have been classified as POCI when the original loan was derecognised and a new loan was recognised
as a result of a credit daven debr restrucruring.

The Company calculates the ECL on a collective basis for financial assets that do not show signs of impairment/defaulr
and/or are less than 0.2% of equiry at the previous reporting date according to the financial starements. When performing an
assessment on a collective bass, loans with simular risk characterstics for collective analysis are segmented. The calculation of
the ECL for assets measured on « collective basis is carried out for each segment separately.

Forward-looking information and mu/i:ple economic scenarios

In s ECL models, the Company relies on macroeconomic forward looking informanon about the GDP growth rate as
economic inputs.

The choice of the macroeconomic factor is due ro the fact that it is one of the most general (broad) indicators in economic
terms reflecting the mfluence of many other factors.

To obrun forecast information, the Company uses data from external sources (the official website of the relevant state bodies,
the Natonal Bank of the Republic of Kazakhstan, and other external mnformation sources). The tables show the values of the
forward looking economic varables/assumptions used in each of the economic scenatios for the ECL calenlatons. The
figures for “Subsequent years” represent a long-term average and so are the same for each scenario as at 31 December 2019:

Assioned
probabilities, Subsequent
Key drivers ECL scenario % 2020 2021 years
GDP growth
Upside 16°%% 1,90 (),85 145
Base case 6R%% (3,00 (1,14 045
Downside 16% 0,10 -1.14 055

The ECL is calculated 1n the same way as for loans.

The financial assers and liabilities of the Company are concentrated in the Republic of Kazakhstan.

Liquidity risk and funding management

Liquudity nisk 1s the risk thar the ( ompany will be unable to meet its payment obligations when they fall due under normal
and stress circumstances. To limar this sk, the management of the Company has ar ranged diversified funding sources. Also,
1t manages assets with liquidity in mind, and monitors future cash flows and liquidity on a daily basts. This incorporates an
assessment of expected cash flows ind the avatlability of high grade collateral which could be used to secure additional funding
if required.



Agradan Credit Corporation Joint Stock Company

Notes to 2019 financial statements

(in thousands of tenge)

25.  Risk management (continued)

Liquidity risk and funding management (continued)

Analysis of financial liabilities by remeining contractual maturities

The table below summarizes the maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities ar 31 December 2019 and 2018, based

on contractual undiscounted pavinents.

More

Less than 3 Jtol2 than
As at 31 December 2019 . months months 1to 5 years 5 vears Total
Amounts due to the Shareholder 2.535.698 53.971.048 97.629.835 54.562.101 208.698.682
Due to credit instimutions 9.969.151 - 7= - 9.969.151
Debt securities 1ssued 425.000 7.570.002 76.510.848 36.672.357 121.478.207

Due to state and srate-financed

organisations 321.689 1.773.160 34.107.422 14.231.188 50.433.459
Other financial habilities - 477.868 402.233 - 8R0.101
Total undiscounted financial liabilities 13.251.538 63.792.078  208.950.338  105.465.646  391.459.600

More

Less than 3 Jto 12 than
As at 31 December 2018 months months 1 to 5 years S yvears Total
Amounts due to the Shareholder 2.5361.670 54.767.810 80.809.168 20.315.735 158.454.383
Due ro credit institutions 7.741.367 2.028.462 - = 9.769.829
Debr securities issued 425.000 4.529.683 65.163.936 6.750.000 76.868.619

Due to state and state-financed

organisanons 167 268.2(19 26.940.280 5.715.317 32923973
Other financial lubilines - 223589 H78.065 1.734.638 2.836.292
Total undiscounted financial liabilities 10.728.204 61.817.753 173.791.449 34515690  280.853.096

The rable helow shows the contracrual expiry by maturity of the Company’s credit related commirments and contngencies.

Each undrawn loan commirment 15 included 1n the time hand containing the earhiesr dare it can be dr

2019
2018

awn down.

Less than 3 Jro 12 Later than 5
months months 110 5 vears vears Total
93.469.181 = - = 93.469.181
59.741.155 = = = 59.741.155

The Company expects that not all of the credit related commirments will be drawn hefore

Market risk

expury of the commitments.

Marker nisk 1s the risk thar the fair value or future cash flows of financial instrumenrs wwill fluctuate due to changes in market
vanables such as interest rates and foreign exchanges.

Intereit rate rivk

Interest rate risk arises from the possibility that changes in interest rates will affect furure cash flow

financial instruments. Interest rates on assets and habilities of rhe (¢ “ompany are fixed,

s or the fair values of
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25. Risk management (continued)
Market risk (continued)

Currency risk

Currency tisk is the risk that the value of a financial instrament will fluctuate due 1o changes in foreign exchange rates.

The tables below indicate the currencies to which the Company had significant exposure at 31 December on its non-trading
monetary assets and lhabilities and irs forecast cash flows. The analysis calculates the effecr of a reasonably possible movement
of the currency rate against tenge. with all other vadables held constant on the statement of profit oz loss (due to the fair value
of currency sensitive trading monetary assets). The effect on equity does not differ from the effect on the starement of profir
or loss. All other parameters are held constant. The negative amount in the table reflects a potential net reduction m the
statement of profir or loss or equiry, while a positive amount reflects a net potential increase.

2019 2018
Change in Change in
currency rate in Effect on profit currency rate in Effect on profit
Currency ) % before tax % before tax
US dollar +12,00% (2.745) +14,00% (374
US dollar -9,00% 2.058 -10,00% 267
Russian ruble +12,00% (370) = =
Russian ruble -12,00% 370 = =

Operational risk

Operational nsk 1s the risk of loss ansing from systems failure, human error, fraud or external events. When controls fail to
perform, operational nsks can cause damage ro reputation, have legal or regulatory implications, or lead to financial loss. The
Company cannot expect to eliminate all operational risks, but a control framework and monitoring and responding to potential
usks could be effective tools to manage the risks. Controls should include effective segregation of duties, access, authorisation
and reconciliation procedures, stalf education and assessment processes, ncluding the use of internal audir,
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26.  Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities

Due to the Total
government Due to state liabilities
Debt of the and stare- arising from
Due to the  Due to credit securitics Republic of financed financing
Shareholder institutions issued Kazakhstan  organisations activities
Carrying amount as at 31
December 2017 15.745.153 1.515.288 606.867.978 - 9.891.167 92:019.586
Additions 157 228 800 0477052 - 60 000000 18.463.010 221.168.862
Redemption 1674.673) (1.553.480)  (10.000.000)  (60.000.000) (2041701)  (78.269.854)
Dividends declared +.189.685 - - - - 4.189.685
Payment of dividends (4.189.685) - - - - (4.189.685)
Discount on mitial recognition
of liabilitics at fair value (22.203.644) - - - (5461.251) (27.664.875)
Odther 7792712 107.785 31.003 — 1.783 440 9.714.940
Carrying amount as at 31
December 2018 127 888.348 9.546.645 56.898.981 — 22.634.685 216.968 659
Additions 69.601.108 9.800.000 28.729.231 60.000.000 17.867.780 185.998.119
Redemption (23 348.012) (9.477.051) (60.000.000) (365.127)  (93.190.190)
Dividends declared 10.375.617 - = — = 10.375.617
Payment of dividends (10.375.617) - -~ - - (10.375.617)
Discount on inital recognition
of ltabilities ar fair value (23.697.782) - ~ - (6.244.717) (29.942.499)
Oither 4.770.926 6.524 712.766 - 2.542.482 8.032.698
Carrying amount as at 31
December 2019 155 214.588 9.876.118 86.340.978 - 36.435.103 287.866.787

The “Orher” item reflects the effect of accrued but not vet paid interest on labilities related to financial activities. The
Company classifies interest paid as cash flows from operating activites.
27.  Fair value of financial instruments

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measuted or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the fair
value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level mput that is stgnificant o the fair value measurement as a

whole:
L] Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or labilines

. Level 2 — Valuation techmiques for which the lowest level mput that 15 significant to the fair value measurement is
directly or mdirectly obserible

. Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowesr level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
unobservable.



Agrarian Credit Corporation Joint Srock Company

Notes to 2019 financial statements

(in thousands of tenge)

27.

Fair value of financial instruments (continued)

The following table shows an analvas of financial instruments whose fair value 1s disclosed by levels of the fair value hierarchy:

As ar 31 December 2019

Assets for which fair value is disclosed
Cash and cash equivalents

Amounts due from banks

Loans to customers

Finance lease receivables
Invesunent secunities
Other financial assets

Liabilities whose fair value is disclosed
Amounts due to the Shareholder

Due to state and state-financed
organisations

Due to credit nsamnons

Debt securnes 1ssued

Orther financial labihines

As at 31 December 2018

Assets for which fair value is disclosed
Cash and cash equivalents

Amounts due from banks

Loans to customers

Other financial assets

Liabilities whose fair value is disclosed
Amounts due to the Shareholder

Due to state and state-financed
orgamsations

Due to credit institutions

Debr securities 1ssued

Other financial habilities

Fair value measurement us:}}g

mputs Inputs mputs

Date of valuation Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
31 December 2019  48.578.130 = —  48.578.130
31 December 2019 —  42.680.055 - 42.680.055
31 December 2019 363.961.23  363.961.23

= = 5 5
31 December 2019 - - 2.123.939 2.123.939
31 December 20119 = 588.664 - 588.664
31 December 2019 - =4 1.293.840 1.293.840
31 December 2019 154.582.60 154.582.60

— 1 - i
31 December 2019

—  36.580.082 —  36.580.082
31 December 2019 =; 9.876.118 - 9.876.118
31 December 2019 —  88.746.438 —  88.746.438
31 December 2019 - = 803.491 803.491
31 December 2018  70.889.857 = - 7().889.857
31 December 2018 - 32.908.280 — 32908280
31 December 2018 2063 148.03  2063.148.03

= - R 3
31 December 2018 - -5 123611 123.611
31 December 2018 128.345.63 128.345.63

= 1 = 1
31 December 2018

— 23599252 - 23.599.252
31 December 2018 = 9.591.776 = 9.591.776
31 December 2018 —  3R272543 —  58.272543
31 December 2018 = 1.377.167 238.645 1.615.812
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27.  Fair value of financial instruments ( continued)

Financial instruments not carried at fair value in the statement of financial position

Set out below is a comparison of the current and fair values of the Company’s financial instruments. The table does not
include the fair values of non-financial assets and non-financial liabilities.

31 December 2019
Carrying Unrecognised
amount Fair value gains/ (losses)
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 48.578.130 48.578.130 =
Amounts due from banks 45.063.483 42.680.055 (2.383.428)
Loans to customers 361.783.687 363.961.235 2.177.548
Finance lease receivables 2.287.406 2.123.939 (163.467)
Investment securities 604.896 588.664 (16.232)
Other Anancial assets 1.293.840 1.293.840 -
Financial liabilities
Amounts due ro the Shareholder 155.214.588 154.582.601 631.987
Due to state and stare-financed organisations 36.435.103 36.580.082 (144.979)
Due to credit msttutions 9.876.118 9.876.118 -
Debt secunties 1ssued 86.340.978 88.746.438 (2.405.460)
Other financial habilides 804.569 803.491 1.078
Total unrecognised change in unrealised fair value (2.302.953)
31 December 2018
Carrying Unrecognised
amount Fair value gains/ (losses)
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 70.889.857 70.889.857 —
Amounts due from banks 32815837 32.908.28() 92.443
Loans to customers 265.103.066 263.148.038 (1.955.028)
Other financial assets 123611 123.6011 =
Financial liabilities
Amounts due to the Shareholder 127 888.348 128.345.631 (457.283)
Due ro state and state-financed orzanisations 22.634.685 23.599.252 (964.567)
Due ro credir mstitutions 9.546.645 9.591.776 (45.131)
Debt secunines 1ssued 56.898.981 58.272.543 (1.373.562)
Other financial habilites 2221917 1.615.812 606.105
Total unrecognised change in unrealised fair value (4.097.023)

The following describes the methodologies and assumptions used to determine fair values for those financial instruments
which are not recorded ar fair value in the financial statements.
Agsets for which fair value approximates carm tng vale

For financial assets and financial liabilities that are liquid or having a short term matunity (less than three months) it is assumed
thar the CATIVING amounts approxunate to therr fair value. This assumption is also applied to demand deposits and savings
accounts \ViTI]Ullt a S-IJK‘.‘CjﬁC marurim.

50



Agrarian Credit Cotporation Joint Srock Company

Notes to 2019 financial statements

(in thousands of tenge)

27.  Fair value of financial instruments (continued)

Financial instruments not carried at fair value in the statement of financial position (continued)

Finanetal arsets and financial fabiliter carried at amortised cost

For quoted debt instruments the fair values are determined based on
instruments are estimated by disc ounting future cash flows using rates

and rematning maturiges,

28. Maturity analysis of assets and liabilities

The table below shows an analysis of assets and liabilities accordin
Nate 25 “Risk management” for the Company’s contracrual undiscounted repayt

ment obligations.

quoted marker prices. The fair values of unquoted debr
currently avalable for debt on similar rerms, credit risk

g to when they are expected to be recovered or settled. See

B 2019 2018
Within one More than Within one More than
year one vear Total vear one year Toral
Assers
Cash and cash equivalents 48.578.130 = 48.578.130 70.889.857 - 70.889.857
Amounts due from banks 31.246.221 13.817.262 45.063.483 20.811,347 12.004.490 32.815.837
Loans to cusromers 120.543.198 241.240.489 361.783.687 $4.061.198 171.041.868 265 103.066
Fmance lease recervables 1.796.435 490.971 2.287.406 = - -
Assers held for sale 1.880.310 = 1.880.310 864.739 - 864739
Invesmmenr securities 8.668 596.228 604.596 - - -
Investment propern = 447.821 447.821 = 345724 345724
Properry, plant and equipment - 367.500 367.500 = 362767 362767
Intangible assers = 254.653 254.653 = 207.828 297.828
Clurrent corporare income tax assers - = = 359.009 = 359.009
Deferred corporate income rax assets = = = = 982.220 982.220
Orher assers _ Lae22.756 40.525 1.663.281 214.545 59.775 274.320
Toral assets 205.464.250 257.466.917 462.931.167 187.200.695 185.094.672 372.295.357
2019 2018
Within one More than Within one More than
o vear ane year Total vedar one year Total
Liabilities
Amounts due to the Sharcholder 52.256.425 102.958.163 155.214.588 53757468 T4.130.880 127 888.348
Due to eredir msnrunons 9.876.118 = 9.876.118 0.546.645 - 9.546.645
Debr securities 1ssucd 2.397.818 83.943.160 86.340.978 1.363.748 55.535.233 56.898.981
Due ro stare and srate-financed
organisanons 2.091.399 34.343.704 36.435.103 205.579 22.369.106 22.634.685
Currenr corporate income rax
labihnes 135.976 = 135.976 = - -
Deferred corporate income tax
liabilities = 1.486.049 1.486.049 - - -
Current provisions 373.023 = 375.023 344507 — 344507
Orther labilines 3.888.235 343.352 4.231.587 1.906.702 1.781.821 3.688.523
Total Liabilities _ 71018.994 223.074 428 294.093.422 G7.184.649 153.817.040 221001689
Net position 134.445,256 34.392.489 168.837.745 120.016.046 31.277.632 151.293.678
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29. Related party disclosures

In accordance with LAS 24 “Related Parry Disclosuses”, parties ate considered to be related if one party has the abiliry o
control the other party or exercise significant influence over the orher party in making financial or operational decisions. In
considening each possible related party relationship, artention is directed to the substance of the relatonship, not merely the
legal form.

Related parties may enter into transactions which unrelated parties might not. Prices and terms of such rransactions may differ
from prices and terms of transactions between unrelated parties.

The govemment of the Republic of Kazakhstan controls the activities of the Company through the Shareholder.

The volumes of related party transactions, outstanding balances ar the vear end, and relared expense and income for the year
are as follows:

2019 2018
Entities under Entities under
cammaon Government- common Government-
Sharebolder control  related entities Shareholder control  relared entities
Loans issued as at 1
January = 10.017.784 = = 3.654.752 =
Loans wssued = 8.225.000 ol = 13.000.000 -
Lovans repaid = (1.000.000) - = = =
Oither difterences = (675.867) = == (6.636.968) =
Loans issued as at 31
December - 16.566.917 = = 10,017,784 e

Less BECL allowance ar 31

December - (849.368) - = (222.614) —
Loans issued

at 31 December,

less ECL allowance = 15.717.549 = = 9.795.170 =
2019 2018
Entities under Entities under
common Government- common Govermmnent-
Sharcholder control  refated entities Shareliolder contrel  related entities
Loans obtained at 1
January 127.885.348 = 22.634.685 13,745,153 = 9.891.167
Loans obraned 69.601 108 = 17.867.780 133.228.800 - TRAG3.010
Loans repud (25.345.012) — (365.127) (4674.673) = (62.041.701)
Orther differences (18.926.856) = (3.702.235) (14.410,932) - (3.677.791)
Loans obtained at 31
December 155.214 588 = 36.435.103 127.888.348 = 22 634.685
Debt securities issued at
1 January 56.081.191 797.174 e 55.958.522 T97.174 =
Debt secunnes placed = == - - = -
Repatd dunng the penod - = = (4.887.400) - -
Other differences 483.374 56 o 5.012.069 = -
Debt securities issued at
31 December 56.564.565 797.230 . 56.081.191 797.174 =

Due under the

assignment

agreements as at 31

December = »t = - 1.274.804 =
Interest mcome on loans

1sstied s L366.689 - - 8.609 -
Interest expenses on loans

received (11.633.9122) = (2.546.677) (4.390.2610 - (L.791.217)
Interest costs on debr

secunnes sued (5.022.519) (63.640) = (5.012.069) {63.583) =
Interest expense under

ASSEMmMEnt agreements = (61.531) = = (492.584) -
Ceedir loss expense = (628.116) = = (222.614) =
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29. Related party transactions (continued)

Loans received from the Shareholder as at 31 December 2019 have effective interest rates from 4.5% to 11.6% per annum (as
at 31 December 2018: from 4.5% to 11.6% per annuimn),

Loans recerved from stare and stare-financed orgamisations as at 31 December 2019 have effective interest rates from 7.1% to
13.3% per annum (31 December 2018: from 8.9% ro 13.3% per annumy).
Compensation to the key management personnel

Key management personnel in 2019 and 2018 consisted of 5 persons. Compensation of key management personnel compnsed
of the following:

2019 2018
Salanes and other short-term bencfits 105.372 H2.859
Social securiry costs 9.693 7.640
Total key management personnel compensation 115.065 90.499

30. Capital adequacy

The Company mamntains an activelr managed capital base to cover risks inherent in the business. The adequacy of the
Company’s capital 1s monitored using, among other measures, the ratios established by the National Bank of the Republic of
Kazakhstan.

As at 31 December 2019 and 2015 the Company had complied in full with all its exrernally imposed capital requirements.

The primary objectives of the Company’s capital management are to ensure thar the Company complies with externally
imposed capital requirements and that the Company maintains strong credit ratings and healthy capital ratios in order to
supporf its bustess and to maxanuse shareholders’ value.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to ir in the light of changes in economic conditions and
the nisk characteristics of irs acrivities.

The NBRK requires companies engaged in certain types of banking activities to maintain a minimum Tier 1 capital adequacy
ratio (k1) of 6% of total assets; minimum capital adequacy ratio (k1-2) of 6% of risk- weighred assets and contingent liabilities;
and minimum total capital adequacr ratio (k1-3) of 12% of nisk-weighted assets and contingent liabilities and operational risk.
As at 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018 the capital adequacy ratios of the Company caleulated in accordance with
the requirements of the NBRK were as follows:

31 December 31 December
2019 2018

Tier 1 capital

152.703.069

140.779.730

Tier 2 capital 16.034.036 10.375.617
Shares in the charter capital of legal entities - -
Total capital 168.737.105 151.155.347
Risk weighred assers 465.594.646 370.467.718
Commitments and contingencies 46.734.591 29.8700.578
Operational nsk 21.147.698 15.274.773
Capital adequacy ratio (k1) 32,99% 37.8%
Capital adequacy ratio (k1-2) 29,81% 35.2%
Capital adequacy rario (k1-3) 31,63% 36,4%
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31. Subsequent events

On 20 February 2020, the Company signed a Loan agreement No. 9ITPY1058 with the Ministrv of Finance of the Republic
of Kazakhstan in the amount of K2 70,000,000 thousand with a nommal interest rite of 0.01% per annum. Financing under
this Loan agreement was recetved in full on 29 February 2020 for financing of agro-industrial complex ennnes.

Due to the recent rapid outbreak of the coronavirus pandemic (COVID-19), many countries, including the Republic of
Kazakhstan, have mtroduced quarintine measures, which has had a significant impact on the level and scale of business acnviry
of marker parnicipants. It1s expected that both the pandemic itself and measures taken to minimise its consequences can affect
the activities of companies from vanous industries. The Company considers this pandemic as a non-adjusting event after the
reporting period, the quanntanve ctfect of which cannot be reliably measured.

Since March 2020, there has been significant volatility in the stock, currency and commodity markets, mchiding decline 1n a1l
prces and depreciation of tenge against the US dollar and euro. The Company’s management 1s currently analysing possible
impact of changing micro- and mucro-economic conditions on the Company’s financial position and performance results.



